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Mission Statement

AV an

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and franchisees
to appreciate our education, products and services, which are made by the love and
kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who made modern ladies beautiful, confident

and wealthy.
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Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
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Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
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Financial Highlights

B 5 2

Selected Financial Data BHBEBHE FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015
HK$'000 (except per share data) T8 7T (BREUERIN) 2% —T——4% - ZT-=§ —T-NF ZEBE-IF

IREE HREE HREE HREE PREE BREE
Revenue /ON 485,389 591,295 483438 439421 505,761 506,913
Cost of sales HEKAR 130,007 122,162 103,592 106,321 116981 109,419
Gross profit e 355,382 469,133 379,846 333,100 388780 394,494
Operating profit fm 75848 173,647 155,251 83,052 116,274 170,392
Profit for the year RER R 30710 115,172 119,108 58459 71,480 136,830
Dividends FRFI 160,168 170179 45648 52,655 105,871 136,944
EPS - basic BREMN - &R 500160 $0.0580 $0.0600 $0.0290 $0.0360 $0.0680
DPS BRI 500800 $0.0850 $0.0228 500263 5005288 $0.0684
Return on Equity (ROE) RAREIR 40% 14.6% 15.9% 7.4% 9.2% 18.7%
Return on Assets (ROA) BEDH 33% 12.0% 135% 6.0% 73% 15.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EERB WKk
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt %5 1o R
Turnover by geographical region 1&g &5 2 & %58 2015 2014 Changes
—B-HF —F-mF EE)
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET % TET %  TET %
The People’s Republic of China FREE ARSI
("PRC") ([ EARE]) 418,524 82.5% 420,338 83.2% (1,814) -04%
Taiwan = 84,987 16.8% 80,639 15.9% 4,348 54%
Others Hith 3,402 0.7% 4,784 0.9% (1,382 -28.9%
Total Ht 506,913 100.0% 505,761 100.0% 1,152 0.2%
Turnover of the Group in 2015 increased by 0.2% to HK$506.9 million compared ~ ZNEE[E 7 & ¥ ih — F — P € #9505,800,0007%
with HK$505.8 million in 2014. The rise was mainly due to an increase of HK$1.9 EtﬂO.Z%i_§—£¢5’9506,900/000/%75 o

million in product sales, which segment contributed to 98.7% of our total

turnover.

Turnover in the PRC market decreased by 0.4% from HK$420.3 million in 2014 to
HK$418.5 million in 2015, while turnover in Taiwan increased by 5.4% to HK$85.0
million compared with HK$80.6 million in 2014.

Sales from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased
by 28.9% from HK$4.8 million in 2014 to HK$3.4 million in 2015. Contribution
from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 0.7% of the Group's

turnover.

The Group's overall gross profit margin improved from 76.9% in 2014 to 78.4% in
2015 due to an increase in the proportion of higher-margin products within our

sales mix.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

PO (%)

Turnover by activities BRERE D EEE 2015 2014 Changes
—EB-RfF i Sitkc pE2)
HK$’000 HKS000 HKS000
FET FET FEIT 9%
Products Em
PRC BTN 17 414,933 415,827 (894) -0.2%
Taiwan &g 82,145 77,969 4176 54%
Others Hih 3,402 4,784 (1,382) -28.9%
Total wast 500,480 498,580 1,900 04%
Services R
PRC e lEipN 173 3,591 4511 (920) -20.4%
Taiwan BE 2,842 2,670 172 6.4%
Total 4t 6,433 7,181 (748) -10.4%
Turnover by activities REBE D2 EEE 2015 2014 Changes
—E-FHE —T—eE )
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000

FET % FET % FET %
Products s 500,480 98.7% 498,580 98.6% 1,900 04%
Services R 7% 6,433 1.3% 7,181 14% (748) -104%
Total wst 506,913 100.0% 505,761 100.0% 1152 0.2%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand. Product
sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily come from franchised
spas, self-owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product
sales in 2015 amounted to HK$500.5 million, or 98.7% of the Group's total
revenue, representing an increase of HK$1.9 million or by 0.4% when compared
with sales of HK$498.6 million, or 98.6% of the Group's total revenue in 2014. The
increase in product sales was mainly driven by the growth in such segment in
the Taiwan market by 54% to HK$82.1 million in 2015 compared with HK$78.0
million in 2014.

S EIRE (&)

Em

REBETEUBAE] MBUERHEEERS
Em- XAER  BEER - BERR R
DESASEED ERHEAREETEI
AKE - BEEEREMBEKESRL - BEKLS
KEFLREEAREE - —E—AF2EM
$H 5 BH3%500,500,00078 7T (ShAb A & B 2 A
98.7%) * B — T — PO 4F 7 §H & £5498,600,000/8
TC (B 1 AN & [ 48 I A 98.6%) 1 511,900,000
JL5k0.4% © EMIHERIENEERNBEMS
2 38 E R AR =T — Y4 #978,000,000% 7T _E F+
54%% —F— R H)82,100,000/8 T °

Service income PR A% ez 2015 2014 Changes
—Z-5f —T-mEF 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET % FEr % FEr %
Training income B 438 6.8% 368 5.1% 70 19.0%
SPA service income KB AR M 5,347 83.1% 4,797 66.8% 550 11.5%
Others =i 648 10.1% 2016 28.1% (1,369) -67.9%
Total st 6,433 100.0% 7,181 100.0% (748) -104%

Services PR 7%

Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and other

services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. Currently the Group has one self-owned spa in China and 3 self-
owned spas in Taiwan.

Service income is solely derived from the Group's self-owned spas. The Group
does not share any service income generated from spas run by franchisees
under its current franchise arrangements. In 2015, service income decreased by
10.4% to HKS$6.4 million compared with approximately HK$7.2 million in 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income

Other income increased by 53.4% from HK$18.5 million in 2014 to HK$28.3
million, which mainly comprised interest income, rental income from other
properties, financial refunds and overprovision of tax audit of HK$11.7 million,

HK$2.6 million, HK$8.5 million and HKS$2.7 million respectively in 2015.

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
decreased to 31.5% in 2015 compared with 34.1% in 2014. It decreased by
HK$12.8 million from HK$172.5 million in 2014 to HKS$159.7 million in 2015.
Advertising and promotion ("A&P") expenses decreased to 6.7% of the Group's
total turnover in 2015 as compared with 7.3% in 2014, and decreased by HK$3.0
million from HK$36.8 million in 2014 to HK$33.8 million in 2015. Our focus in
2015 was mainly on supporting franchisees to increase sell-through activities
via customer events, indoor salons and roadshows so that they can maintain a
healthy inventory level. We will adjust allocations of A&P expenses according to
our formulated strategies. Other key expenses include salaries of HK$54.9 million,
travel and entertainment expenses of HK$7.5 million, depreciation charges of
HK$13.4 million as well as rentals of offices and sales counters of HK$28.0 million
in 2015.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$2.7 million, or 3.0%, to HK$87.2
million in 2015 compared with HK$89.8 million in 2014. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including non-cash share
based payment) of HK$33.2 million, legal and professional fees of HK$9.1 million,
depreciation charges of HK$11.0 million and office and utilities expenses of
HK$7.5 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Other expenses

Other expenses decreased by HK$20.0 million, from HK$28.6 million in 2014
to HKS$8.6 million in 2015. The decrease was mainly due to the impairment of
HK$22.4 million against the other receivables and the fixed asset in 2014 and loss
of disposal of property, plant and equipment due to equipment renewal and
franchise store closure of HK$7.3 million in 2015.

Profit before tax

Taking into account the higher gross profit, and lower distribution and
administrative expenses, profit before tax increased by 46.5% from HK$116.3
million in 2014 to HK$170.4 million in 2015, and the pre-tax profit margin
increased to 33.6% in 2015 from 23.0% in 2014.

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased by HK$11.2 million to HK$33.6 million in 2015
compared with HK$44.8 million in 2014. The effective tax rate of the Group
in 2014 and 2015 was 385% and 1
rate in 2015 was mainly due to the HKS$14.4 million tax refund received for
2009/2010/2012 dividend income and 2011
and 2012 due to lower withholding tax rate approved by PRC tax bureau in 2014.

9.7% respectively. The lower effective tax

royalty fee which were paid in 2011

Profit for the year

Profit for the year increased by 91.4% from HKS$71.5 million in 2014 to HK$136.8
million in 2015.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2015 was approximately HK$140.1
million (HK$165.1 million in 2014). The decrease was mainly due to changes
in working capital (decrease in other payables). As at 31 December 2015, the
Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$502.7 million (HK$583.3
million as at 31 December 2014) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, the
Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’
equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 were 3.6 times and 4.2 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and notes thereto.
With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and it has sufficient financial resources to finance its commitments and to
meet its working capital requirements.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in Renminbi and New Taiwan
Dollars as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2015, approximately 80.9% (87.1% as at 31 December 2014) of
the Group's bank balances and cash was denominated in Renminbi, while
approximately 16.6% (11.8% as at 31 December 2014) in New Taiwan Dollars.
The remaining 2.5% (1.1% as at 31 December 2014) was denominated in US
Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and Ringgit Malaysia. The Group continues to adopt a
conservative approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. It reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivatives to hedge against such

risks when necessary.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ EE
Turnover by %t i 2 5 2015 2014 Changes
geographic region ZEERE —E—-FF —E—pE EE)
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS'000 9%
FET FET FET
PRC B A B
Products = 414,933 415,827 (894) -0.2%
Services BR7# 3,591 4511 (920) -204%
PRC Total AR ER KRR 418,524 420,338 (1,814) -04%
Taiwan =)-|
Products B 82,145 77,969 4176 54%
Services BR7& 2,842 2,670 172 6.4%
Taiwan Total =) 1E 84,987 80,639 4348 54%
Others Hity
Products B 3,402 4,784 (1,382) -28.9%
Services AT - - - -
Others Total Hfbaast 3,402 4784 (1,382) -28.9%
The PRC Market B KpET IS

Due to slowdown in PRC's economic growth, the Group's turnover in the PRC
market decreased by 0.4% in 2015 to HK$418.5 million compared with HK$420.3
million in 2014. The decrease was driven by decrease in sales of products.
Gross margin on product sales increased from 80.5% in 2014 to 82.0% in 2015,
as a result of more sales of higher-margin products such as NB-1, and lower
promotion discount.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Taiwan Market

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s turnover in the Taiwan market increased by 54% from HK$80.6
million in 2014 to HK$85.0 million in 2015 due to door-by-door management via
franchisee differentiation to utilize company resources efficiently. Gross margin
decreased from 80.2% in 2014 to 79.7% in 2015, as a result of higher promotion
discount on product sale during the period under review.

BEENWR DM

HRENMBEECEZEETEMEE  UAEX
MARAIER  AREREEME 2 &%

— T — P04 780,600,000 JT1E M154%E —
L — A F 285000000/ 7T c EMIBEEERE
FEH-ZT—PF 7802%0EE —E—RHF 2

797%  RERREEHRARSTINERES
FEK °
Distribution channels DEHEE
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by RERREEDZ owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership IEHEE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
meaE
®E BELE KEPL ERLE  BERE
KEHLH  KERL #et i HiE SEE  2Act
As at31December2015 HA=ZE—H%EF
+=A=t-H
PRC R B A RE 778 779 0 14 14 793
Taiwan =9 246 249 0 249
Others Hih 30 30 30
Total et 1,054 4 1,058 0 14 14 1,072
Franchisee Self Self
Store Number by REERED 2 owned owned Total  Entrusted owned Total
Ownership ] Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter Counter Total
nEEE
wE BELE KERL ZRLE BELE
KERL  KERL 5t =E BE BEEs e
Asat 31 December 2014 ~ RZTE—4
+=-A=+—~
PRC B RE 1073 1 1,074 0 14 14 1,088
Taiwan = 257 3 260 0 0 0 260
Others Hith 30 0 30 0 0 0 30
Total “ast 1,360 4 1,364 0 14 14 1,378
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

£ 3C1)

DHRE (8)

2015 2014
2015 2014 Average Average
SHEEHE Average Average sales sales
Average sales per store IS5 EEE store* store* per store per store Changes
—E-HF —TNF —FB-HF —T-0OF
BT EETY SRE®  BRESE
#HE* KA POHEE THHER 23
HKS HKS HKS %
Er BT BT
PRC A B A e 940.5 1,090 445,000 379,000 66,000 17.4%
Taiwan =y 254.5 266.5 334,000 303,000 31,000 10.2%
Group total** EE @ 1,195.0 13755 421,000 364,000 57,000 15.7%

Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period
total)/2

*¥

Group total does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia turnover and store
count.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores. As
at 31 December 2015, there were 1,058 spas and 14 concessionary counters. Of
these, 1,054 were franchised spas, and 4 spas and 14 concessionary counters
were directly operated by the Group. No concessionary counters were entrusted
to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees who are
responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to use only
Natural Beauty or “NB”" products in their spas. A wide array of services including
hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis are provided in
all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the concessionary counters
in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 25 new stores were opened and 331 stores were closed
during the year ended 31 December 2015. Average sales per store increased
from HK$364,000 in 2014 to HK$421,000 in 2015.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which allows
it to maintain its competitive edge, to continuously improve the quality of its
existing products and develop new products. The Group has been collaborating
with overseas skin-care companies on technological development. The bio-
technology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported from
Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB's products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experiences, together with Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu's 40-year-plus industry experience
and knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products.
NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products and adopts
special formulae to cater to the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB

products accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

NB has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome
and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1 product
family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance and
slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to protect
the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

In 2015, the Group’s flagship NB-1 products accounted for more than 45% of
total product sales. Sales of NB-1 branded products reached HK$229 million in
2015. With effective product line rationalization plan, NB-1 series successfully
launched several new products, among them, spa care product strengthened
and consolidated the status of Natural Beauty in beauty and spa, meanwhile,
increased product consumption and brand loyalty. The new products received
good response from franchisees and achieved strong sales, especially NB-1 Plus
Firm Lift Extract. Once listed, the market responded enthusiastically, causing

consumers competing’s pursuit race, sales of which achieved HK$45 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 607 employees, of whom 494
were based in the PRC, 110 in Taiwan and 3 in other countries and regions. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2015 was approximately
HKS$122.3 million (HK$125.4 million in 2014), including retirement benefit related
costs of HK$16.2 million (HK$16.8 million in 2014) and stock option expenses
of HK$9.3 million (HK$1.1 million in 2014). Competitive remuneration packages
are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are

reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

On 31 March 2015, the Company granted share options to certain key
employees to subscribe for a maximum of 3,500,000 shares (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2015 for details). Such share options
were subsequently cancelled after the close of the option offer by Karl Thomson
Securities Company Limited on behalf of Next Focus Holdings Limited on 18
December 2015. Details of such option offer are set out on pages 81 to 82 of this

Annual Report.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$60.8 million in 2015 was mainly related
to the land purchase in Fengxian amounting to HK$46.4 million, the POS system
upgrades amounting to HK$1.6 million and skin test machine (Wood's machine,
Iris and PC device) amounting to HKS$3.2 million, production equipment
amounting to HK$4.5 million and IT infrastructure amounting to HK$1.7 million.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include: (i) slowdown in
PRC's economic growth; and (i) the escalating rental and labor costs in China.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Analysis

Analysis using financial key performance indicators can be found in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis" and "Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements"of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures
have been adopted in the Group's offices and factories. Such initiatives include
recycling of used papers, energy saving measures and teleconference instead of
physical meetings.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws,
rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact on the Group.
The Legal Department of the Group is responsible to monitor the Group's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and

relevant operation units from time to time.
Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all employees are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review and update its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A customer
complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive, analyze and study
complaints and make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
product and service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict
appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W R DM

OUTLOOK

The PRC government’s continued plan for urbanization and incentive for
individual entrepreneurship should fuel the continuous growth in the beauty
and personal care market.

With the escalating rental and labor costs in China, we will continue to pursue
a prudent growth strategy and implement the following strategies so as to
proactively strengthen our position as a leading skin care brand and spa operator
in the Greater China Region.

- We will encourage people to start their own business at NB and focus
on adding more stores in tier 3 and tier 4 cities in the PRC.

- We will speed up the upgrading of current products and launching of
high-tech products to satisfy the needs of the consumers.

- We will introduce to the PRC market a new skin care brand “Stremark” for

plastic surgery recovery, which was well developed in Taiwan for years.

- We will leverage on the rising awareness of personal well-being among
PRC consumers and drive the growth of health supplement through the
current channels.

- We will make more commitments to the environment, corporate social
responsibility and governance.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited firmly believes that strong corporate
governance is the foundation to delivering the corporate objective of
maximizing return to its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the
governance structure is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”)
which is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance transparency,
accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from
our shareholders and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of
shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance
on how corporate governance principles are applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2015, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied
with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code on Corporate Governance”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Hong
Kong Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The following summarises the Company's corporate governance
practices and explains deviations, if any, from the Code on Corporate

Governance.

The Company adopted a revised Audit Committee Charter on 27 August 2015
in compliance with and to address the new provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance dealing with risk management and internal control systems and
effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January 2016.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to
continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TERERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

A. DIRECTORS
Directors’ Attendance and Training Records
The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of
three Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board meets four times
during a year as a minimum and, during 2015, it met ten times.
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting as well as
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December

Al.
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2015 are as follows:

Al.

RATHNELEEARER @)
A. EE

ESHFERIEIIR

E=eRA/REEAR HFE
E3RHITES 1 RIERTESEM
BBUFNTES -EFEEF
ELBRTOREH  R_FT—hF
BT HREZ -BE_T—AOF
T-A=+—HALFER  SEE

EREgKEHAFE  BlLE
ENEFR SR ZEEFZRES

ERMBRAG 2 HECE - AR
BRI HEWT

Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee ~ Board  General Training
Meeting ~ Meeting ~ Meeting ~ Meeting Meeting Meeting  Courses
¥MZEE FNZEE H{TZEE REZEE E3g RREE
83 (S 83 B2 &3 g HIER
Executive Directors HITESE
Dr.TSAI Yen-Yu ERTET n/a n/a 34 221010 01 Notea
TER TR Miza
Mr. LEE Ming Ta" FHELAD n/a n/a - -~ 1010 01 Notea
TER TR fifita
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng? BEAE Lo 44 n/a = na 10710 01 Notea
TR Tam Miita
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT® i ey 33 a 44 1/1 99 111 Noteb
@R fifito
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina REBLLY n/a 2 n/a n/a 33 01 Noteb
TEA TER TEm fifth
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin® R n/a n/a n/a n/a 33 01 Noteb
TNER  TER  MER TEA fitzth
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu® FAmLo /- 33 44 Ma 10710 o1 Notea
TR fizta
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK? EFHLAD n/a n/a 34 n/a 79 01 Noteb
TEA TEm TER fifth
Ms. GONG Zhizhi® EFRLe n/a 1/1 n/a n/a 5/6 nfa  Notea
TER TER  NER TER Wiz
Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo® Gy bt n/a n/a n/a n/a 4/6 nfa Notea
TER @R TER TR THER Wi
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER® Francis GOUTENMACHER 3/3 33 4/4 1 8/9 171" Notea
pieal fifzta
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON'" AR 33 33 n/a /1 9/9 11 Noteb
TER fifitb
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BmE s 4 23 n/a yJ)) 8/10 01 Notea
TEA izt
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BRIEE 44 33 44 12 710 0/1 %ﬁe a
IRE
Mr LU Chi-Chant BEESLAED /- -/~ n/a /- -/~ nfa  Notea
TER TEm Wi
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

m Mr. LEE Ming-Ta was appointed as the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on
18 December 2015. No Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee meetings were held after 18 December 2015.

) Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was appointed as a member of the Executive
Committee on 18 December 2015. No Executive Committee meeting
was held after 18 December 2015.

3) Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT resigned as a Non-Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Executive Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 18 December 2015. Nine Board meetings, four
Executive Committee meetings, two Remuneration Committee
meetings and one Nomination Committee meeting were held
before 18 December 2015.

4) Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina resigned as a Non-Executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee on 11 August 2015. Three
Board meetings and two Audit Committee meetings were held
before 11 August 2015.

(5) Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin resigned as a Non-Executive Director on
11 August 2015. Three Board meetings were held before 11 August
2015.

6) Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 18 December 2015. No Remuneration Committee
meeting was held after 18 December 2015.

(7) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned as a Non-Executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee on 18 December 2015.
Nine Board meetings and four Executive Committee meetings were
held before 18 December 2015.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued) AR TIHNEEERER (8)

A. DIRECTORS (Continued) A. EE )
Al. Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued) Al EBHEREIIRESE (8)
Notes: (Continued) BoeE : (88)
(8)  Ms. GONG Zhizhi was appointed as a Non-Executive Director 8) EBBLIN-_Z—RFENAT

and a member of the Audit Committee on 11 August 2015 and
subsequently resigned from such posts on 18 December 2015.
Six Board meetings and one Audit Committee meeting were held
during the period from 11 August 2015 to 18 December 2015.

9) Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 9)
11 August 2015 and subsequently resigned from such post on 18
December 2015. Six Board meetings were held during the period
from 11 August 2015 to 18 December 2015.

(10)  Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER resigned as an Independent Non- (10)

Executive Director, a member of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee, a member of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on
18 December 2015. Nine Board meetings, two Remuneration
Committee meetings, three Audit Committee meetings, four
Executive Committee meetings and one Nomination Committee
meeting were held before 18 December 2015.

(1) Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON resigned as an Independent Non-Executive amn
Director, the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 18 December 2015. Nine Board meetings, two
Remuneration Committee meetings, three Audit Committee
meetings and one Nomination Committee meeting were held
before 18 December 2015.

(12)  Mr. LU Chi-Chant was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive (12)
Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 18 December 2015. No Board, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee meetings
were held after 18 December 2015.

(a Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche (a)
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company and/or received
training materials provided by the Company.

(b)  Attended other continuous professional development training (b)
course(s) that was/were not organized by the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) and
the respective Charters of the Committees.

The agenda of Board meeting or Committee meeting and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Director of Legal and the Company
Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advising the Board on corporate governance
and compliance matters.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ Attendance and Training Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company's Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the Code on
Corporate Governance.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'
and officers' liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising
from corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu serves as the Chairperson, while Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is
the Vice Chairman. Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT ceased to be the
Vice Chairman following his resignation as a Non-Executive Director
on 18 December 2015. Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen served as the
Chief Executive Officer until expiry of the term of her employment
on 1 January 2016 and Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung was appointed as
Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Group on the same day and
tentatively holds office as Chief Executive Officer, following the
departure of Ms. CHANG. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief
Executive Officer are separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group
strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the

overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's

responsibilities.

Code provision A2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present. Since the Chairperson is also an Executive
Director of the Company, respective Independent Non-Executive
Directors are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, one existing Non-
Executive Director is, and two former Non-Executive Directors
and two former Independent Non-Executive Directors were also
members of the Executive Committee, it was considered there were
ample opportunities for the Chairperson to communicate with
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors), therefore no separate meetings were held between the
Chairperson and the Non-Executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

32

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company from time to time pursuant to the Hong Kong Listing

Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board, at all times,
met the requirements of the Hong Kong Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board (there are
currently three Independent Non-Executive Directors out of seven
Directors. During the year 2015 and up to 18 December 2015, there
were four Independent Non-Executive Directors out of twelve
Directors) with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. We consider all Independent Non-Executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts, including Executive and
Non-Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms or one-year
term, and are subject to re-election.

Code provision A4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
(resigned on 18 December 2015), Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina
(resigned on 11 August 2015), Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin (resigned
on 11 August 2015), Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (resigned on
18 December 2015), Ms. GONG Zhizhi (resigned on 18 December
2015) and Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo (resigned on 18 December 2015)
did not enter into service contracts with the Company as they
are employees of Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited, an
entity established in Hong Kong. Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors
Limited has offices in Hong Kong, Mumbai, Seoul, Beijing, Shanghai,
Singapore and Sydney. Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited
acts as the Asian investment advisor to various Asian focused

investment funds managed by The Carlyle Group.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
("AGM"). Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, Mr. LU Chi-Chant
and Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang will retire by rotation according to the
Articles and all of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

A.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and
our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the
re-election of such independent non-executive director. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, none of the existing Independent
Non-Executive Directors has served on the Board for more than
nine years.

Disclosure of Directors” Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules

Directors’ Positions Held
On 18 December 2015:

(i) Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT resigned as a Non-Executive
Director, the Vice Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of
the Executive Committee, a member of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company;

(i) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned as a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company;

(i) Ms. GONG Zhizhi resigned as a Non-Executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of Directors” Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Hong Kong Listing Rules (Continued)

(iv)  Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo resigned as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company;

(v} Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER resigned as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee, a member of
the Executive Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company;

(Vi) Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company;

(vii)  Mr. LU Chi-Chant was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (for a term of one year), the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company;

(viii)  Mr. LEE Ming-Ta was appointed as the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company;

(i) Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was appointed as a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company; and

(®)  Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)
A4. Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)
Disclosure of Directors” Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules (Continued)
1 February 2016

(i) Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing resigned as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company; and

(i) Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Renewal of Director’s Service Contract

On 19 January 2016, the Board approved the renewal of the
Director’s Service Contract of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long as Independent
Non-Executive Director, for a term of one year commencing on 1
February 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman), Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu and Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s board of
directors and having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
annually and making recommendation to the Board on selection of
candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy.
It also assesses the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination Committee Charter)
are available on the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir and the
Stock Exchange’s website.
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EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in year 2015. During
the year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination Committee
had considered and recommended to the Board, among other
things, the appointment of Ms. GONG Zhizhi as a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee; and appointment
of Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo as a Non-Executive Director, in each case,
with effect from 11 August 2015; the appointment of Mr. LU Chi-
Chant as an Independent Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee; the appointment of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
as the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee; the appointment of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
as a member of the Executive Committee; the appointment of Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu as a member of the Remuneration Committee, in each
case, with effect from 18 December 2015; and the appointment of
Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung as Chief Operating Officer and Interim Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 21 December 2015 and 1 January
2016 respectively.

During the year 2015, the Nomination Committee conducted an
annual review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision A5.2
of the Code on Corporate Governance. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained and no material matter was identified during

the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal advisers, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements.

During the year 2015, all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Certain Non-Executive Directors were also
member of the Executive Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2015 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 26 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standard of the Model Code has been complied with throughout
the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this

Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company pursuant to code provision A64. No
incident of non-compliance with the Model Code or the Company’s
Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted
after making reasonable enquiry.

Continuing Professional Development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2015, the Company organized two Directors' trainings
(one in Hong Kong and one in Taiwan) on the new requirements
on the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and

other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, one
Executive Director and one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. LU
Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang,
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-Executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain
directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2015. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees and senior management, and the 2015
merit increase; reviewed and recommended the granting of share
options to employees of the Group and vesting of existing share
options under the Company's Share Option Scheme; and reviewed
and recommended the Director’s Service Contract of Mr. LU Chi-
Chant as Independent Non-Executive Director and the employment
terms of Mr. HSIAO Wen-Chung as Chief Operating Officer and
Interim Chief Executive Officer. With reference to the Remuneration
Committee Charter, the Remuneration Committee members had
carefully reviewed and considered the contribution of each of the
Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty and
spa business and the market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;
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Report on Corporate Governance
EERERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued) AABMEEERER ()
C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) C. RBEREFT (&)
C1. Financial reporting (Continued) Cl. BE®mE (8)

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor's Report set out on pages 84
to 85.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and report to
regulators as well as information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness.
Management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management system and system of internal control and
compliance with best practices. The Chief Executive Officer and
Finance Vice President also report to the Audit Committee on key
findings regarding internal control. The Audit Committee, in turn,
communicates any material issues to the full Board.

The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016 to
enhance internal control and risk management systems in a timely
manner.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has
conducted reviews of the internal control system and considered
the internal control system of the Group has been implemented

effectively.

46 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

RATHNELEEARER @)
BERES (8)

C.

C2.

EkEER R EEEE
EFxgrHAERREERAE
BRES WRAHEKRY - EEES
E IR RREE R G M A B e
R - AR ERBRNE
REBH o LI TTERAE RIS
BB TenEnREeRsaH
MRz T BEE - BRZES

Al IEEATHRBEERZREFTENX
AN BEFESETRNE - TEE

BARRESF MG REREET
BHZBER BIERENMESR UKk
BIMEX 2EIREREBEE
BT o

AEBER T —RFYKILRNIE
ZED - TETINSE N EPESIE KRR E
B R

 ZE-T-—RF+-_A=+—AH1Lt
FEN BEFZERTAPELER
7 WRAAEE 2 NP EIE RS
TZ2BH -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Gs.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members
are Independent Non-Executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-
Chant possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is
a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty. The Audit
Committee is also responsible to perform corporate governance
functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Code on Corporate
Governance.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C

48

Gs.

C4.

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
1 December 2015. During the year 2015, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2015 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2015,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company's expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external

auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2016.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$3,381,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$266,700 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D1.

D2.

Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- Long-term objectives and strategies;

= Extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- Preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- Material banking facilities;

- Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

- Annual internal controls assessment.

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees (namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with
specific terms of reference setting out their roles and functions
available at the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive

Committee are set out below.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises three Executive Directors and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman), Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (KPls) and track
performance.

The Executive Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the attendance records are set out
under “Directors’ Attendance and Training Records” on page 26 of
this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E1.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

The Company has held one AGM since the issuance of the last
annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of a listed issuer should attend the annual general meeting. Dr.
TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Board, was unable to attend
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 22 May 2015
(2015 AGM") due to other overseas commitments. The Board had
arranged for Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, the Vice Chairman of the
Company and the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Group until 18 December 2015, who was well versed in all business
activities and operations of the Group, to attend and chair the 2015

AGM on behalf of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and to respond to shareholders’

questions.

Two former Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER (who was a member of the Audit, Remuneration,
Executive and Nomination Committees until 18 December 2015)
and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (who was the Chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee until 18 December 2015) also attended
the 2015 AGM.

The Company will optimize the planning of general meetings,
give adequate time to all Directors to accommodate their work
arrangement and provide all necessary support for their presence
and participation in general meetings such that all Directors will be
able to attend future general meetings of the Company.

Report on Corporate Governance

EEERWE

RATHNELEEARER @)

E.

BRRZBE
El. BXREE

BAREYRIRABRAR

REHEL - ARFENEBRERS
VYZEH (BRERENES) @

RIR2RER -

EEEIFENREZFZESERARK
FEBZRIRRRALFRERR
BERE -

BLE—OFEERETHEUAR - AR
ABRIT-ABRRBFAS -

SPRIMESCEBE 2GR E - ETHETT
AZESZEIFEREFERFAEFAKR
g o EFGIFESLETETAEM
EIINEBZHEREER B HEAA A
RZE—RAFRA-_+-_AHET2
BRAFRE ([ ZZE—RFER
FAFAE]) - EFSELTHEA
SE—UEBEH NEERNEE
B MEAE R A (EERQRRIEE
FRAKENTEESEIERE B
E-Z—AF+-_A+NABL) R
REREELHERER_-T—H
FEREBFRG NBEERER
fid o

AR I ERITESINEE T
“E-RFERRAFRE - D5
/AFrancis GOUTENMACHERZE A4 (42
TEZELZES FHEEE - BT
ZESNRERZESNERK &
2-_E—RE+-_A+N\BIL) &
AEEzt (EEAFMEZEESE/E
hEZZEGNMREGEZE K ER
o EBEE_T—ARFt+_-_A+N\H
1)

ARBEBTERRAGHRE - 4
TERESAERRABKE LT
1EREE XARERHFEMS MR
RERE—IBHEE - UE2RE
EEBRAHFERNRBRENEK
RA® -

—ZT-RFEFHR 51



Report on Corporate Governance
TERERMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E1.

Effective communication (Continued)
The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2015
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, which is available at the
Company's website (www.nblife.com/ir) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of
Directors by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication
Policy are available for download from the Company's website
(www.nblife.com/ir).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455
Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles is also available on the Company's website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2015 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2015 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2015
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2015
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of
the Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. HO Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an external service provider and

has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary. Her main

contact person at the Company is Ms. Jenny ZHU (Director of Legal).

Ms. HO has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training during the year 2015.

Report on Corporate Governance
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EENGREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN)

Aged 68, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
(Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(Executive Director) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director), is an Executive
Director and member of both the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. She has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY
BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. She is
currently also a director of some of our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and
Taiwan subsidiaries. Dr. TSAl has been awarded numerous honours, positions and
prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the US.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

“Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
“Ji Qing Chuang Ye"of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

Tst Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LEE MING-TA (ALIAS LEE MING-TAH)

Aged 68, is the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director of the Group. He is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 18 December 2015. Mr. LEE is the husband of
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, whom is the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the Group.
He is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director) and Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director). Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. LEE had
worked for various financial institutions at senior management level for over 10
years in corporate management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated in Fengchia
University in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance. He has
also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. He is currently also a director of some of
our British Virgin Islands, Malaysia, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU CHIEN-CHENG

Aged 44, is the son of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director) and
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and he is the elder
brother of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu who is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr.
SU Chien-Cheng was a Non-Executive Director and re-designated as Executive
Director effective from 15 December 2011. He is involved in the financial
management and strategic management of the Group at Board level. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee
since 7 February 2013 and 18 December 2015, respectively. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
graduated from the University of Westminster in UK with a master degree of
business administration and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999.
He has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May
2001 and 11 July 2008, respectively. He is currently also a director of some of our
British Virgin Islands, PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU SH-HSYU

Aged 42, is the daughter of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson and Executive Director)
and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman and Executive Director) and the younger
sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director). Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been
an Executive Director since 21 September 2004 until she was redesignated
as a Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009, was further redesignated
as an Executive Director on 15 December 2011 and was redesignated as
a Non-Executive Director on 7 February 2013. She is also a member of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu graduated from the London School of Economics
with a Master of Science degree in industrial relations and human resources
management and obtained her PhD in international and comparative education
from Columbia University in New York, United States. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been
actively engaged in the marketing and business development of the Natural
Beauty Group in Taiwan and China during the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu is involved in strategic management of the Group at Board level. Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu has been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG
KONG) COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16
May 2001 and 11 July 2008, respectively. She is currently also a director of some
of our PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 67, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National Chung-Hsing
University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic Affairs
of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries
and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974
to 1979. Mr. CHEN was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information
Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. CHEN is currently the Board Chairman
of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Secretary-general
of Cross-Strait CEO Summit, a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan and
Teknowledge Development Corporation in Taiwan, and the Board Chairman
and Chief Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology Corporation (stock
code: 5346), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He is also a director
of HannStar Board Corporation (stock code: 5469), Asia Cement Corporation
(stock code: 1102) and GINTECH ENERGY CORPORATION (stock code: 3514); a
managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (stock code: 1326); an independent director of China Petrochemical
Development Corporation, Ltd. (stock code: 1314) and INVENTEC CORPORATION
(stock code: 2356), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June
2011 until 10 June 2014, he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech.
Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 3452), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was
appointed as the Group's Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February
2010. He is also the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 64, is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle Nice
(International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of K Laser
Technology Inc. (stock code: 2461) and Li Peng Enterprise Co,, Ltd. (stock code:
1447), both listed on the stock exchange of Taiwan. He is also an independent
director of Nyquest Technology Co, Ltd, a company listed on the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market (stock code: 6494). From 2012 to 2013, Mr. LU was
an independent director of First Sino Bank, a licensed bank established in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. LU obtained a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from National Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the professional
qualification examinations in Taiwan for certified public accountant in 1983
and for securities investment analyst in 1988. During the period from 1976 to
1984, Mr. LU worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation,
a company established in Taiwan which is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of plastic raw materials and products. Mr. LU joined Deloitte &
Touche Taiwan as an auditor in 1984 and he became a partner there in 1986.
Mr. LU left Deloitte & Touche Taiwan in 2011. He was appointed as the Group's
Independent Non-Executive Director on 18 December 2015. He is also the
Chairperson of Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. HSIEH PANG-CHANG (ALIAS SHIA BEN-CHANG)

Aged 53, obtained his Ph.D degree in Biological Statistics from Department
of Agronomy of the National Taiwan University. He holds various positions in
the Taipei Medical University, including the associate dean of the College of
Management, a director of Big Data Research Center and a professor of School
of Health Care Administration. He is also the president of Chunghwa Market
Research Society and the honorary president of ChungHwa Data Mining
Society. Mr. HSIEH is currently an independent director of Sirtec International
Co, Ltd. (stock code: 5356), a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities
Market. He was a director of Waterland Financial Holding Co,, Ltd. (stock code:
2889) and International Bills Finance Corporation (stock code: 5840), both listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He was also a director of Waterland Securities
Investment Consulting Co,, Ltd. and CyberSoft Digital Services Corporation, an
Information Technology company established in Taiwan. During the period
from 1991 to 2015, Mr. HSIEH worked as an associate professor of Department
of Business Mathematics of Soochow University, a professor of The Institute of
Biological Statistics of National Taiwan University, the Chairman of Department
of Statistics of Fu Jen Catholic University, a director of Institute of Business
Administration of Fu Jen Catholic University and an editor of DIGITIMES Inc,
respectively. He was appointed as the Group's Independent Non-Executive
Director on 1 February 2016. He is also the Chairman of Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company.

GROUP CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER AND INTERIM
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MR. HSIAO WEN-CHUNG (ALIAS MARK SHAW)

Aged 58, joined the Group on 16 October 2006 as the Chief Operating Officer
of Taiwan and other markets. He was subsequently re-designated as the
Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 15 April 2009 and was
responsible for consolidating and expanding the Group's operations until 9
February 2010. Mr. HSIAO graduated from the Department of Journalism of
Chinese Culture University in 1981. Prior to joining the Group in October 2006,
Mr. HSIAO has over 23 years of operational management experience in the
consumer goods industry. He was the National Key Account Manager of Tait
& Co, the National Sales Director of Unilever Taiwan, the Sales and Marketing
Director, Greater China of Warner-Lambert and Energizer Schick Taiwan Limited,
leading the sales team of the company operating globally in the broad
categories of household and personal care products. From November 2014 to
November 2015, Mr. HSIAO was the Executive Vice President of Panion & BF
Biotech Inc, Taiwan (Stock Code: 1760).
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

GROUP OPERATION VICE PRESIDENT:

MR. WANG KUANG JUI

Aged 48, is in full charge of operational management of the Company. Mr.
WANG graduated from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan with a Bachelor
degree of Mass Communication. Prior to joining the Group in 2006, Mr. WANG
held senior positions in Dragon Logistics Co,, Ltd and Trust-Mart Hypermarket. He
was also a senior executive and the chief information officer of Amigo Logistics

Corporation in Taiwan.

GROUP CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER:

MS. WU CHIN HSIN

Aged 53, joined the Group in 1981. Ms. WU used to serve as the training director
and self-owned spa manager in Taiwan. She was the training director of PRC
from 2003 to 2010. Starting from April 2013, she was appointed as the Group
Chief Education Officer and in charge of the direction and training of PRC NB
franchising stores, and she manages self-owned spa and training center in
Shanghai. She also works with R&D team in the development of new products.

NATIONAL SALES GENERAL MANAGER:

MR. LIANG CHUN-HUNG

Aged 57, joined the Group in June 1999. Mr. LIANG is in charge of marketing
and sales in Taiwan. He was subsequently re-designated as Operation Director of
the Greater China starting from February 2002 and was responsible for counters
and distributor channels, until February 2010. Mr. LIANG graduated from
Tunghai University with a bachelor degree in business management in 1985.
Prior to joining the Group in June 1999, Mr. LIANG has 14 years of operational
management experience in the consumer goods industry. He had worked in
NIVEA, Elizabeth Arden, YSL and FLORIS and took charge of marketing and overall
planning. From May 2010 to December 2015, Mr. LIANG was the Chief Executive
Officer of ESENS International Group.
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GROUP CHIEF CONTROLLER:
MS. CHEN HWA LIEN

Aged 67, joined the Group in 1993 as the vice general manager of PRC
headquarters and was in charge of the administration, logistics and human
resources of the Group's PRC operation until February 2010. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. CHEN had over 10 years of regional operational management
experience in Taiwan. She was one of the key employees for the Group's
expansion in the PRC. Starting from January 2016, Ms. CHEN serves as the Group

Chief Controller and is in charge of internal control and risk management.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Aged 52, is the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of Rule
8.17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Ms. HO is a director of Corporate Services
Division of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of both The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Ms. HO has over 20 years of experience in the company
secretarial area. She is currently the joint company secretary of China Greenland
Rundong Auto Group Limited and the company secretary of China Molybdenum
Co,, Ltd, Yashili International Holdings Ltd, Sun Art Retail Group Limited,
Goodbaby International Holdings Limited and Broad Greenstate International
Company Limited, all are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products and health supplements and make-up
products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set
out on pages 8 to 24.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 86.

An interim dividend of HK$0.0392 per share (2014: interim dividend of HK$0.021)
amounting to approximately HK$78,482,356 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. At the Board meeting held on 29 March 2016, the Directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0292 per share (2015:
final dividend of HK$0.03188) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 3 June 2016, amounting to approximately
HKS$58,461,347. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 25
May 2016. Details of the dividends are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:

TEMERRETTE
AARGR T AR E R RR B D FE -

Book Closure Period Purpose Final Lodging Date
PR R B LR =Nz REREZAH
24 May 2016 to 25 May 2016 To determine the identity of members who are entitled 23 May 2016
to attend and vote at the 2016 Annual General Meeting
—E-REFRAZ+HEH REEAREE_Z— R FERRABFAE —T-RERAZT+=H
2T XFRAA-+AA WHE FREZRERHH
2 June 2016 to 3 June 2016 To determine the identity of members who are 1 June 2016
entitled to the final dividend
NEARAZH RETHEERERRPBRE BRI H —TRFRA—H

7ii/
—=
T —= /‘\i/‘\J _El

During and including the book closure periods described in the table above, no
transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2016 Annual General Meeting
or to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the final lodging dates mentioned in the
table above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were less than 10% of the Group's total

turnover and purchases for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2015 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, amounted to
HK$836,000.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on pages 175 and 176 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAl Yen-Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (resigned on 18 December 2015)
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina (resigned on 11 August 2015)
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin (resigned on 11 August 2015)
Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (resigned on 18 December 2015)
Ms. GONG Zhizhi (appointed on 11 August 2015 and resigned
on 18 December 2015)
Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo (appointed on 11 August 2015 and resigned
on 18 December 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s articles of association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Mr. LU Chi-Chant and Mr. HSIEH
Pang-Chang will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company's articles of
association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr.
SU Chien-Cheng shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Hong Kong Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be

independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any
proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.

CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice Chairmen of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Chairperson and Vice Chairmen

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Vice Chairman of the Board)
(resigned on 18 December 2015)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES (Continued)
Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (appointed on 1 February 2016)

Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina (resigned on 11 August 2015)

Ms. GONG Zhizhi (appointed on 11 August 2015 and resigned
on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman) (@appointed on 18 December 2015)

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (resigned on 18 December 2015)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES (Continued)

Members of Executive Committee:

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Chairman) (@appointed on 18 December 2015)

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)

Members of Nomination Committee:

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant (appointed on 18 December 2015)

Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Chairman) (appointed on 1 February 2016)
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (resigned on 18 December 2015)

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (resigned on 1 February 2016)
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE CHAIRMEN AND BOARD

COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the

executive committee and the nomination committee of the Company as well as

the Chairperson and Vice Chairman of the Company as of date of this report are

set out below:
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TRIVIBEAREETERY - ARAEZ
ZEg FHMEZEE HTRZEGREREER
BZHERABURARRREEREIERE

Board Committees

ExeL8e
Audit Remuneration Executive  Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors Exe BZZE® HNEEE WNEEE REZEE
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) B EIEL - = M M
(BE=2ER)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice Chairman of the Board) ~ ZSRR#E A4 - - C M
(ZEEEEER)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng EREIE T = M M -
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Rt M M M =
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRImIE ST C M - M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EREELE M C = M
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang HFELE M M - C
Notes: BiEE -
C Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C EREFESEESNERE
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEFSZEENKE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HKS$10,017,000 which represents the share premium and retained profits of the

Company.

RATZ Ao Iki#E
ATE-—RAFE+-_A=+—8B ' KRFESE
RE RNRARAHEIETREZEEN R
10,017,000 70 * ZEREE AR E 2 R0 5%
BRIREHF o
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Directors)
and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director) expired on 31 December 2014
and were renewed with the same terms for another three years from 1
2015 to 31 December 2017 with an initial annual remuneration of HK$1,000,000,
nominal HKS$1, HK$1,250,000 and HK$1,250,000, respectively. The Director's
service contract entered into between the Company and the Independent Non-

January

Executive Director, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long expired on 31 January 2016 and was
renewed with the same terms for another one year from 1 February 2016 to 31
January 2017

The Director’s service contract entered into between the Company and Mr. LU
Chi-Chant (Independent Non-Executive Director) is for a term of one year from
18 December 2015 to 17 December 2016 with an initial annual remuneration of
HK$240,000.

The Director’s service contract entered into between the Company and
Mr. HSIEH Pang-Chang (Independent Non-Executive Director) is for a term
of one year from 1 February 2016 to 31 January 2017 with an initial annual
remuneration of HK$240,000.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other

party one to three calendar months'notice in writing.

The Directors' service contracts entered into between the Company and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER and
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON were terminated on 18 December 2015.

The Director's service contract entered into between the Company and the
Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing expired on 31 January
2016.

There was no service contract entered into between the Company and each
of Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (resigned on 18 December 2015), Ms. NG Shieu
Yeing Christina (resigned on 11 August 2015), Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin (resigned

1 August 2015), Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK (resigned on 18 December
2015), Ms. GONG Zhizhi (resigned on 18 December 2015) and Mr. CHANG
Hsiuguo (resigned on 18 December 2015).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts for the year ended

31 December 2015 are summarised as follows:
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BERKEEN @)

ol =

BFE+ZA=+—RHILFE  RE

B RS E KA 2 FFB A

Annual
Director fee

Annual increment

Executive Directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year.

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors may receive a bonus approved (b)
by and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that

(b)

financial year of the Group.
(@) Resigned on 18 December 2015.
(d) Appointed on 18 December 2015.

(HK dollars)  on Director fee Discretionary
Directortype FEHEZHE FHED bonus
Name of Director BEEHA EE85 (Bim) FEHEE BB AT
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu L ED 1,000,000 Note @PMI5E@)  Note (b)BffFE(D)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FTERHESA ED 1 Note @FizE@  Note (b)HiFE(0)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng BREEE T ED 1,250,000 Note @Mf7E(@)  Note (b)FizFE(b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu B BiEL NED 1,250,000 Note (@)FffzE(@  Note (b)HizE(b)
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHERSE 4=
(Note (c)) (M) INED 231613 N/ANEHA N/AZT i F
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON IHES hean
(Note (c)) (MI7E@©) INED 231613 N/ATER N/AZTN3E B
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRI ST A INED 240,000  N/ATNEF N/ATN i FR
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BT RA INED 240000 N/ANERA N/AZNE
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Note (d)) ~ ERFE 54 (W) INED 9032 N/ATEM N/AZNE
Total M=t 4452,259
ED: Executive Director ED: $IfTES
NED: Non-Executive Director NED : JEBTTES
INED: Independent Non-Executive Director INED : B IFHITES
Notes: BiaE -
@@  The annual increment of the Directors' fee for Executive Directors and Non- (@) HITEENIFENITEE EEZHWE T FIEIE

TEHRBE—F2FEHME10% -

HTEERFRTESTUDNEZTE TR
BHOAE ZTEAL » i T 2 BT E E RIFATT
EEZATNGBBAEENZVRFEZ
RABER ARIGREZERSEN15% °
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

No Director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than the service contracts disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Service Contracts” above or employment contracts, concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year 2015.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges,
expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the
execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

Remuneration of Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

BEERESHN @
REBE-_ZE—NER_ZE—HFE+_A=+—
BIEFE @ AARWERRRN I NEME
EIEA -

B EXIWEEESN - AR EBAEEF] I
AR —FARMNHE (—BEEFERI)
FURRIEZ REWREEL -

BEEESN

R-ZF—AF BREXTEERHBAO K
P BRI RS & M RERA I - AARIEE
AUPREBER/REBEBITHRARSHIAR
AIEBIAEZHRONEL  TEABESOF
in

EEFHREE
REARPABERAANRTE - ARAFEH
EEEARESRARRRNEEETHEMRE
PR TRAS S E UL A R R B A 0 T AT RE R =K
BRZFAAERAK - B FX - BRIERE
-

ARAFEHEE 2 EE A e EE T FRRE
EREENRENERBERR -

SREE A B NE
BHE_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HItFE =/
B ABRFIHEESZ S OFMESIOT ¢

Remuneration bands M EE Number of members of senior management

SREEABAH
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,00177T — 1,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 1
Total HET 2
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors, the chief executives and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporation
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BB R IRE BB ALTRAR R R EARE
Bzt - Bk RESP  BEXL DAL
RARAREES KPEGEMN ((EFEHE
&Pl ]) 35205 FE 2 BRMAZER - KT
REFB MRS SN EMBRITAE
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Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital

of the Company
Number of {HZRA 7]
Director Company Nature of interest ordinary shares BT
Bx NG HEEE Epalie 4= BMOED L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu™ The Company Interest of controlled companies 1,868,696,559 93.33%
FIE RO RN RPEHIA EIE S
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta® The Company Interest of spouse 1,868,696,559 93.33%
FHERAED ZA/NC] foBtEm
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Director Associated corporation Nature of interest shares  shareholding interest
Bx HREEE Mt E BRINEE (HRESOBES L
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 20,000 40%
B EIE L BERERA
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta Next Focus Holdings Limited Interest of spouse 20,000 40%
FERESRE fofBtEss
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
AR L EnEAA
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu Next Focus Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 15,000 30%
ERarhiE L EREAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporation (Continued)

Notes:

m Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 100% of Standard Cosmos Limited, Next Focus Holdings Limited
is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of
the SFO. As such, the 1,868,696,559 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus
Holdings Limited were attributable to Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu.

On 26 January 2016, Next Focus Holdings Limited sold an aggregate of 210,000,000
shares of the Company and immediately after completion of the shares transfer, the
1,658,696,559 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings Limited are
attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, was deemed to be
interested in the 1,868,696,559 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO. On 26 January 2016, Next Focus Holdings
Limited sold an aggregate of 210,000,000 shares of the Company and immediately
after completion of the shares transfer, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is deemed to be interested
in the 1,658,696,559 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu.

Details of the interests of Directors and chief executives in the derivatives
interests in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 are disclosed
in the Share Options which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executives nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company's
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive
or non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is
granted to such person as determined by the Board at its absolute discretion as
described in the share option scheme as a performance incentive and/or reward
for their continued and improved service with the Group and by enhancing
eligible participants' contribution to the Group, in order to advance the interests
of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) BRE ()

The Company (Continued) ARATF (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options during N R BEA R G RRERFE AN 2 B EIFMR ¢
the year:
Lapsed/ Qutstanding
Qutstanding forfeited at 31.122015
at 112015 Granted during the Canceled  R=ZF—-RE
Vesting Brercise bedse MW-Z—h% during the year during the TR
Option type Dateofgrant  period period price —-A—H year  ERKH/ year =t-H
RIRIERR RHAH GEH i T HATTEE QgL L R HATTEE
2013 Option (CEO) 10 May 2013 4years 10 May 2022 to HKS0.99 38039918 - - (38039918) -
9 May 203
“E-CEJRE O —E-cE MF “B-cf 099787
(ThEH,) AA+H HATAZ
“EcF
RANA
2013 Option 19 April 2013 4years 19 April 2022 to HKS0.99 14515228 = (2802,940) (11,712.288) =
(Other employees) 18 April 2023
“ToERRE 2= mF - Sl 099787
(EftER) mATAR MATARZE
-
mA+T/R
May 2014 Option 6 May 2014 4years 6May 2023 t0 HKS0.99 21522584 = (3,003,151) (18519433) =
(Employee and 5 May 2024
senior management)
“TIERARRE —2-mE 0 mF B 09987
(EERER hAKE S TNES
EEAB) 12
il hil=
December 2014 Option 2 December 2014 4 years 2 December 2023 to HKS0.99 7607983 - - (7607,983) -
(Employee and 1 December 2024
senior management)
12 - S 1 2 -F-= 09987
AE (ERRER  TZAZA tZAZRE
BEAB) 1
t-A-H
2015 Option (Employee) 31 March 2015 4years 31 March 2024 to HKS099 = 3500000 = (3500,000) -
30 March 2025
“T-nfRkE —T-nf D i o 11:3 09987
(ER) =R=+-H =RA=t-R%
“ECRfF
=R=1H
Total
st 81,685,713 3,500,000 (5806,091) (79379622) =
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

2013 Options

The 2013 options (2013 Options”) were granted in accordance with the
announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2013

At the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2013, options to subscribe
38,039,918 ordinary shares of the Company were granted to Ms. CHANG Karen
Yi Fen, former Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The offer letters to other
employees relating to the 2013 Options were issued on 19 April 2013.

2014 Options

The May 2014 options ("“May 2014 Options”) and the December 2014 options
("December 2014 Options’, together with the May 2014 Options, collectively
“2014 Options”) were granted in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 4 April 2014 and 2 December 2014, respectively. The respective
offer letters relating to the May 2014 Options and the December 2014 Options
had been issued to the employees and senior management of the Group.

2015 Options

The 2015 options (2015 Options”) were granted in accordance with the
announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2015. The offer letters relating
to the 2015 Options had been issued to the employees of the Group.

Each of the 2013 Options, 2014 Options and 2015 Options (collectively “the
Options”) would vest over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial year
2014 (in the case of 2013 Options), year 2015 (in the case of May 2014 Options)
and year 2016 (in the case of December 2014 Options and 2015 Options)
(respectively referred to as the “First Year’, as the case may be) respectively, at
the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the First Year and up to a maximum of
20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the achievement of the
performance targets for each financial year as determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining as an Eligible Person (as defined
in the share option scheme of the Company) at the time of each vesting of the
Options.

In the case that a change in control occurs prior to the vesting of all the Options,
the Board would have full discretions on the vesting and exercise of such
unvested Options.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company (Continued)
The Option holder may exercise all vested Options beginning from:

a) the ninth anniversary of the date of grant of the Options; and

b)  the occurrence of a change in control of the Company,

whichever is earlier, until the expiry of ten years from the date of grant of the Options.
The Options should only become exercisable after vesting.

Any failure to exercise any vested Options prior to the expiry of ten years from
the date of grant of the Options would be deemed to be a waiver of the right to
exercise such Options and such Options shall not be capable of being exercised
after expiry of the ten-year period.

The Company’s right to buy back the Options or the Option shares

Upon the occurrence of a change in control of the Company, the Company may,
in its absolute discretion, purchase any unexercised Options or any Option shares
at such time held by the Option holders and the Option holders should sell to
the Company such unexercised Options or Option Shares, at the following price:

- in the case of unexercised Options, the price offered by the offeror in the
general offer minus the subscription price of the Options; and

- In the case of Option shares, the price offered by the offeror in the general
offer.

All the above-mentioned Options under the share option scheme were
cancelled after the close of the option offer by Karl Thomson Securities Company
Limited on behalf of Next Focus Holdings Limited on 18 December 2015. Details
of such option offer are set out on pages 81 to 82 of this report under Significant
Events.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the following
shareholders other than the Directors of the Company had notified the
Company of their relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EFERR

R-T—HE+-A=+—8 ' BEAARE
BHERBEHEEBFTFECEERTER
AR - U TRR (ARAEER) ENE
ARRHEERAARERITRATEEBBE

Eo

REATRGEEBERGD ZFE
RAAREREEI10B T ZEER

Approximate

percentage
Number of of the issued
ordinary shares share capital

beneficially held of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest BEmEE (AR RIEET

FERFUE S EHE Mz EmMnE ERRHEE RAEHNBEOL

Efficient Market Investments Limited Beneficial owner 838,530,000(L) 41.88%
ERBEAA

Adventa Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEAA

Fortune Bright Group Limited Beneficial owner 236,580,000(L) 11.82%
ERBEAA

Starsign International Limited 1 Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000(L) 65.63%
S A T

Next Focus Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner/Interest of 1,868,696,559(L) 93.33%

controlled companies

BERBAAN R AES

(L): Long position
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

m

Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly held 554,666,559 shares of the Company and
directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000
shares of the Company in which Starsign International Limited was interested
were attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited. On 26 January 2016, Next Focus
Holdings Limited sold an aggregate of 210,000,000 shares of the Company.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

0]

(if)

78

On 29 October 2014, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered
into between B A3 £ ¥R AR 1D B R A & (Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Company Limited) (“Taiwan NB”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, an Executive
Director, as landlord in relation to the lease of certain premises in Taipei,
Taiwan which has been used as the headquarters and training and spa
centre of the Group in Taipei, Taiwan, for a period of 26 calendar months
from 1 November 2014 to 31 December 2016, with monthly rental of
TW$2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$574,859.5) to extend the
term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject matter; and
(b) the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between Taiwan
NB as tenant and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng, an Executive Director, as landlord
in relation to the lease of certain premises in Pa-Der Road, Taipei, Taiwan
which has been used as a spa centre of the Group, in Taipei, Taiwan, for
a period of two years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016 with a
monthly rental of TW$75,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,162) to
extend the term of the previous tenancy agreement of the same subject
matter.

Details of the above-mentioned tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 October 2012 and 29 October
2014. Unless otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate
used in the above tenancy agreements is HK$1.00 to TW$3.914.

On 2 December 2014, the Consultancy Services Agreement was entered
into between the Company and CA NB Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, in relation to the retention of CA NB Limited for the
provision of certain consultancy services for a period of 36 calendar
months from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 for a fee of HK$368,000
per calendar month to extend the term of the previous Consultancy
Services Agreement of the same subject matter.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

On 30 September 2015, the Company and CA NB Limited entered into
a deed of termination in relation to the termination of the Consultancy
Services Agreement (“Termination Deed”). Pursuant to the Termination
Deed:

effective from 16 September 2015, the consultancy services
provided by CA NB Limited pursuant to the Consultancy Services
Agreement comprised solely and exclusively of the availability of
four persons to serve as Non-Executive Directors;

ii. effective from 16 September 2015, no fees were paid by the
Company to CA NB Limited for the provision of the consultancy
services under the Consultancy Services Agreement as amended by
the Termination Deed; and

ii.  all the terms and conditions of the Consultancy Services Agreement
terminated and ceased to have any effect with effect from the date
when all Investor Directors resign as Directors at the earliest time
permitted under the Takeovers Code (i.e. 18 December 2015).

Details of the above-mentioned Consultancy Services Agreements and
subsequent termination of the Consultancy Services Agreement were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 14 December 2011, 2
December 2014 and 23 October 2015.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions
of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
Particulars of the transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties
and were negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm’s length basis
and on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2015 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorised by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On 4 September 2015, Next Focus Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”) and CA NB
Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into an agreement, pursuant to which the Vender
agreed to sell and the Offeror agreed to acquire an aggregate of 25,000 ordinary
shares of Starsign International Limited (“Starsign”), representing the other 50% in
the issued share capital of Starsign not already owned by the Offeror, for a cash
consideration of HK$565,558,512 (the "Acquisition”).

Immediately before the closing of the Acquisition, the Vendor and the Offeror
each held 50% of the issued share capital of Starsign, which in turn held
indirectly and in aggregate of 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 65.63% of the issued share capital of the Company. Following the
closing of the Acquisition on 16 September 2015, the Offeror and parties acting
in concert with it came to hold the entire issued capital of Starsign, consolidating
its control, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, of the Company. Accordingly,
the Offeror was required to make a mandatory general offer for all the issued
shares of the Company (other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it) pursuant to Note 8
of Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“the Takeovers
Code") (the “Share Offer”). The offer price was HK$0.8608 per share in cash (the
“Share Offer Price”).

Pursuant to Rule 13 of the Takeovers Code, the Offeror made an appropriate offer
to the optionholders for all share options (the “Share Options”) (which confer
rights on the optionholders to subscribe for new shares) by way of cancellation
of the Share Options (the “Option Offer’, together with the Share Offer, the
“Offers”). The offer price for cancellation of each Share Option should normally
represent the difference between the exercise price of the respective Share
Options and the Share Offer Price. However, as the exercise price of all the Share
Options (all of which were vested) was HK$0.99, which was above the Share
Offer Price, the offer price for cancellation of each Share Option was set at a
nominal value of HK$0.001 in cash.

As at the close of the Offers on 18 December 2015, the Offeror received valid
acceptances in respect of a total of 554,666,559 Offer shares, representing
approximately 27.70% of the issued share capital of the Company under the
Share Offer, and 79,379,622 Share Options, representing all outstanding and
unexercised Share Options, were tendered by the optionholders for acceptance
under the Option Offer.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Immediately following the close of the Offers, taking into account the valid
acceptances in respect of 554,666,559 Offer shares under the Share Offer, the
Offeror and parties acting in concert with it were interested in an aggregate of
1,868,696,559 shares, representing approximately 93.33% of the entire issued
share capital of the Company. As a result, the public float of the Company
has fallen to approximately 6.67% which is below the minimum public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Details
regarding the insufficiency of public float of the Company are set out on pages
82 and 83 of this report.

INSUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at 18 December 2015, immediately following the close of the Offers, the
public float of the Company had fallen to approximately 6.67% which was below
the minimum public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. Pursuant to Note 1 to Rule 8.08(1)(b) of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, trading in the shares of the Company had suspended with effect from 9:00
a.m.on 21 December 2015. The Company had applied to the Stock Exchange for,
and the Stock Exchange granted the Company from, a temporary waiver from
strict compliance with Rules 8.08(1)(@) and 13.32(1) of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules for a period from 18 December 2015 to 19 June 2016.

The public float of the Company as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
6.67%.

On 26 January 2016, Offeror sold an aggregate of 210,000,000 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 10.49% of the issued shares of the
Company. Immediately after completion of the shares transfer, the public float
of the Company will increase to approximately 17.15%, but remain below the

minimum public float requirement.
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The Offeror and the Company will continue to take appropriate steps, including
but not limited to placing down of shares held by the Offeror, to ensure that
at least 25% of the shares will be held in public hands in order to comply with
the minimum public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules as soon as practicable. Further announcement(s) will be made by
the Company regarding the restoration of public float as and when appropriate.

Details of public float status of the Company have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2015, 21 December 2015, 15
January 2016, 29 January 2016, 18 March 2016 and 5 April 2016

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

TSAIl Yen-Yu
Chairperson
Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEREE

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 174, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit itor Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ceBEakEtEERGER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_T-AFT_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—B-HF —TMF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt e FET FAT
Revenue WA 5 506,913 505,761
Cost of sales HEKA (109,419) (116981)
Gross profit EF 397,494 388,780
Other income H b lias 7 28,309 18,449
Distribution and selling expenses HERHEER (159,661) (172,529)
Administrative expenses TR (87,154) (89,820)
Other expenses HEp (8,596) (28,606)
Profit before tax FRAH A ) 170,392 116,274
Income tax expense FriSFiF X 8 (33,562) (44,794)
Profit for the year AE 9 136,830 71,480
Other comprehensive expense: Hih2EAX :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TEREMHOBEREREK
ZIEH
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan TEREMERESTEIZ
B E 23 (347) (488)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to REWENDER
profit or loss: Tﬁiﬁﬁﬁzlﬁ B
Exchange differences arising on translation B EAE 7 [ K AR (44,786) (11,761)
Total comprehensive income for the year AREEELEPEFEE 91,697 59,231
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ALTEIEREE
A
Owners of the Company VINNETE Z=WN 136,830 71,480
Total comprehensive income for the year A TATEEZERE
attributable to: FEEE
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ Y =N 91,697 59,231
Earnings per share i epl 12
Basic and diluted HEAREE HK6.8 cents HK3.6 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EAR R T

n\/-_r\
At 31 December 2015
R-Z—AF+-HA=+—8H
2015 2014
—E-AHF —T—mEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fa FET FAT
Non-current assets FRENEE
Investment properties A 14 6,524 5915
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 187,351 223,708
Prepaid lease payments BRATHAER 16 53,796 9,102
Goodwill FEES 17 27,046 28,272
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use right Y& + 3 {F FA#EE (kS - 12,637
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITEN 20 3,662 -
Deferred tax assets IEIEFATB & B 26 608 2,009
278,987 281,643
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 46,905 45,036
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E M EWERRR 19 54,046 67,458
Prepaid lease payments BT A ER 16 447 310
Pledged bank deposits BEHEIPRITIERK 20 5,491 -
Bank balances and cash RITEF RIS 20 502,721 583,283
609,610 696,087
Current liabilities wREAE
Trade and other payables E 5 RHEMERBRK 21 117,484 153314
Deferred income AW 22 6,593 7,577
Taxation payable ARG 19,560 30311
143,637 191,202
Net current assets REBEERE 465,973 504,885
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 744,960 786,528
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Retirement benefit obligations RIKENEE 23 12,332 12,622
732,628 773,906
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital &N 24 200,210 200,210
Reserves &G 532,418 573,696
Total equity R 732,628 773,906

The consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 174 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu

BEREELT

HIATRERER
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta
THERE
DIRECTOR
EFE
BAREMRRERAR

FOOAEFIT4BEMEAEMBRER_ZE—
F=A— +hE§%§$ATtt/EI$x%?lJ%§ I
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Consoljdatgd Statement of Changes in Equity
nVT\ *E/\'%m Eb%‘:z

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_T-AFT_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LA ON; 1
Share
Share Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total

Bx  &rR% ROEE AERG ERRGR EXRGE RERN fazt
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEr TEx TEx TER TEn  TER  TEn

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZT—-NE—A—A%%E 200210 42554 41,016 163490 138789 680 201519 788,258
Profit for the year REE G| - - - - - - 71480 71480
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEARY

for the year - - - - (11,761) - (488) (12249

Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEE 2 (F%) Yk

for the year ] - - - - (11,761) - 70992 59231
Recognition of equity-settled share ﬁ?’iwﬂxméﬁ te

based payment BMRER = - = - = 1,095 = 1095
Dividends recognised as distrioution B AR RS

(note 13) (MzE13) = = = = = = (74678)  (74678)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-Z-m&E

+-R=1t—H&# 200210 42554 41,016 163490 127,028 1,775 197833 773906

Profit for the year RERER] = = - - - - 13680 136830
Other comprehensive expense AEREMEERX

for the year - - - - (44,786) - (347) (45133)

Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEE 2 (F%) Yk

for the year s - - - - (44,786) - 136483 91,697
Recognition of equity-settled share WHXNEE g
based payment DARER - - = - = 9334 = 9334
Dividends recognised as distribution BRADRZIRE
(note 13) (FzE13) - - - - - - (142309 (142309
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+-R=1t—H&# 200,210 42554 41016 163490 82,242 11,109 192,007 732628
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under PRC generally accepted accounting principles
(“PRC GAAP"), to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with the Article
of Association and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net profit under
PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

meERB B
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-_r\/\IE/ M7 /)II_, il%

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_T-AFT_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES reTEy
Profit before tax MRFH R A 170,392 116,274
Adjustments for: KFEE TSI EIE
Interest income A B = (11,721) (13,508)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMEMREITE 33,832 38,544
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWZE  BEMEEZ
plant and equipment &8 (FE) 7,343 (231)
Release of prepaid lease payments B R+ 3 7R & R 461 311
Increase in fair value of investment properties WEME A TFELM (836) (278)
Impairment of other receivables HAb R FURE - 12,511
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% - BB RSB RE - 9,895
Allowance for obsolete inventories PREGFERG 4,417 5,274
Expense of share based payment expense AN ENE NG 9,334 1,095
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 R 4,582 930
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 28 & & ZFF 2 K ZIRERE 217,804 170,817
Increase in inventories FEEMm (6,286) (3,263)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 RE M ERBRFUR (35,830) (1,196)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K H A e U AR F0R 9,119 31,725
Decrease in deferred income EIEWE R (984) (202)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations RNEMNE R (154) (842)
Cash generated from operations KEEBEE RS 183,669 197,039
Income taxes paid B FEHIE (43,585) (31,936)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRAESREFR 140,084 165,103
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN
A

BEngx

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE_T-AFt+t-_A=1T—HLEE

2015 2014
—2-Rf —TMOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETESH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BERXE (14,403) (18,525)
Purchase of land use right EE AR (46,439) =
Interest received 2 UFE 11,721 13,508
Returned of deposits on acquisition for land use right ROIEE T {ERERS 12,219 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE « BE MR EFTSIIE - 330
Placement of pledged bank deposits BHEMRITHERIRE (9,153) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHMARSTFH (46,055) (4,687)
NET CASH USED IN A FINANCING ACTIVITY MEITEMAESFHE
Dividends paid 2R R (142,309) (74,678)
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND HERRESEEYIEMN OFL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS (48,280) 85,738
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BRZERERESEEY 583,283 507,409
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ERESEsHE (32,282) (9,864)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=—B=+-—-H2

31 DECEMBER RERBLEEY

represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHEFELES 502,721 583,283

BAZEYRRARAT —E-AFFER 9]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nVT\

BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE—

92

T-AFT-A=+—HILFE

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Cayman lIslands on 29 June 2001 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since
28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate holding company are Standard
Cosmos Limited and Next Focus Holdings Limited, respectively, and
both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aroma-therapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 -2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. Prior to the amendments, the Group accounted for discretionary
employee contributions to defined benefit plans as a reduction of the
service cost when contributions were paid to the plans, and accounted
for employee contributions specified in the defined benefit plans
as a reduction of the service cost when services are rendered. The
amendments require the Group to account for employee contributions as

follows:

Discretionary employee contributions are accounted for as
reduction of the service cost upon payments to the plans.

Employee contributions specified in the defined benefit plans
are accounted for as reduction of the service cost, only if such
contributions are linked to services. Specifically, when the amount
of such contribution depends on the number of years of service, the
reduction to service cost is made by attributing the contributions
to periods of service in the same manner as the benefit attribution.
On the other hand, when such contributions are determined based
on a fixed percentage of salary (ie. independent of the number of
years of service), the Group recognises the reduction in the service
cost in the period in which the related services are rendered.

These amendments have been applied retrospectively. The application of
these amendments has had no material impact on the disclosures or the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle and 2011
-2013 Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRSs included in the
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle for
the first time in the current year. One of the annual improvements requires
entities to disclose judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph 12 of HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments. The application of the other amendments has had no impact
on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle and 2011
- 2013 Cycle (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently
amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly
to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI")
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required
to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify
for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9'in
the future may have a material impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's
financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in credit risk of financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
disclosed in note 32.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i. e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement and compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622)
regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and audits
became effective for the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation
and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO
or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are
not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Statement and compliance (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Statement and compliance (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The significant accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
has power over the investee;
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
100  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwiill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebate and

other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to services not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
(classified as finance lease) and freehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below) are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the
lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in
the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specially, government grants whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful live of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits
service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well
as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past

service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future

contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be

paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Contributions from employees or third parties to defined
benefit plans

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce
service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions
from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the
contributions are linked to service, as follows:

If the contributions are not linked to services (e.g. contributions are
required to reduce a deficit arising from losses on plan assets or
from actuarial losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of
the net defined benefit liability (asset).

If contributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For
the amount of contribution that is dependent on the number of
years of service, the entity reduces service cost by attributing the
contributions to periods of service using the attribution method
required by HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For
the amount of contribution that is independent of the number
of years of service, the entity reduces service cost by attributing
contributions to the employees’ periods of service in accordance
with HKAS 19 paragraph 70.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 25.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)
Equity-settled share based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans, pledged bank deposits and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets other than available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit terms of the
customers, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including, trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part
it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwiill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$27,046,000 (2014: HK$28,272,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 17.

Impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$41,210,000 (2014: HK$50,802,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$6,753,000 (2014: HK$2,460,000).

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production and trading. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices,
sales after year end and current market conditions. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of inventories is HK$46,905,000 (2014:
HK$45,036,000) net of allowance for inventory of HKS$4,417,000 (2014:
HK$5,274,000) was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i) goods
sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of sales returns
and allowances and (ii) service income from provision of skin treatments,

beauty and SPA services for the year, and is analysed as follows:
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A
WARTFEEEB TSR ZERNIE
WHERE : \AKEE TIIBEFP ZEM
(MBHEERE RBEFHRIIEK) ki)l
LS EE - XA MKBEIRT 2 BRI W
A BT

2015 2014

—F-RF —FTEF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FExT TH&TT

Sales of goods EmiEE 500,480 498,580
Service income BRAS WA 6,433 7,181
506,913 505,761

See note 6 to for an analysis of revenue by major products and services.

Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the segment and
to assess its performance. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company
reviews internal reports which focus on geographical segments by
location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3 Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

FHtsEe - WABBEEEMRMREH D
i o

7 EBE R
BEMBREENFSFRE - KENED
BEBERLERRA (AARBITR
BE) EMEHNASERNNRE 2HE
RED KB - TEEERRAERE
AREDEERTEDE - LaHED B
RE - BTELERD EMFE SRR
B ARRTHRAHSEHAMBRE
ERBRESTEMIRERPMAES DM
HER o AR EASEIE L -

BEmME  REBEEEVEmELELFHR
ZHE  AEBZAHMERKEE S
—F

1 REARSNE (REARD)

2. =)

3. Hfh (BBRSKADR)
BAZEYREERAR ZZT—AFFHR 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R TR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

7 N ==

HE-T-AF+-A=t—AILEE

120

Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Segment revenues and results DEHBARELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from TNRAREE WA REERARER
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. KE DIV 2 4T o
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z—AF+-A=+t—HLEE
PRC Taiwan Others Total
FRE K BE = Hith B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FET
Revenue KEIMNBER Z WA 418,524 84,987 3,402 506,913
Segment profit pap=ii il 157,231 25,607 4,585 187,423
Expense of share based payment RS (9,334)
Unallocated corporate expenses KB AFSZ W (19,418)
Unallocated income KoM= 11,721
Profit before tax Br R A @A 170,392
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NF+_A=+—HILFE
PRC Taiwan Others Total
R B K RE B EAh, Pk
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FHT FHTT FHTT
Revenue KEIMNBER Z WA 420337 80,639 4,785 505,761
Segment profit (I0ss) o Ebm A (EER) 105,450 19,992 (204) 125,238
Expense of share based payment AR R (1,095)
Unallocated corporate expenses KB AR (21,547)
Unallocated income Foiedes 13,678
Profit before tax BrER AT @A 116,274
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Segment Information (Continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the

Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss)

represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without

allocation of equity-settled share based payments, central administration

costs, directors’ salaries and interest income. This is the measure reported

to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

DEER (&)
SEBRAREE (&
MBS & +ﬁ ﬁ$$lzﬁ%ﬁ

R - 2 EbEA (E1E) B% D EFERX
s an (MEAZER)  EPRIR
DEBRAERGEE RN MR - PRITE
BR EZEFHEABUWA - JttTH%T
EHBERSBERKRBFEMAETREE

>3+§

allocation and performance assessment. RENELRE 2 1RAE -
Other segment information Hittm BER
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FRE K BE =) Hith FEBE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET FET
2015 —ZE-H%F
Amounts included in the measure PaR= vy ot
of segment profit; ST ATFIFEE -
Depreciation of property, Y% - BE &
plant and equipment BEITE 28,107 5,697 28 33,832
Release of prepaid lease payments BOoaRLtthAER 461 - - 461
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HEKR
plant and equipment Rt EE 7,343 - - 7,343
Allowance for obsolete inventories REFERME 3,395 973 49 4,417
Allowance on trade receivables B 5 EW R 4,582 - - 4,582
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e VIR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-T-AF+-A=t—AILEE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEEFR @)
Other segment information (Continued) Hih»BER (&)
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
HEb R
B R RE B Hth et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2014 —TmE
Amounts included in the measure 73854 ) sk 5 18
of segment profit (loss): FTATSIEEE
Depreciation of property, Y% - BE &
plant and equipment RETE 31,081 7414 49 38,544
Release of prepaid lease payments Bsml 5 AL ER 311 - - 311
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEYE  ME K&K
plant and equipment 2 BB (FE) 75 (324) 18 (231)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) [REFERE
for obsolete inventories (B EER[m) 5,194 181 (101) 5274
Allowance (reversal of allowance) E S eI BR R
on trade receivables (BEER D) 988 (58) = 930
Impairment of property, Y% - BE K&
plant and equipment HERE 9,895 = = 9,895
Impairment of other receivables H Ao IR SR E 9333 = 3,178 12,511
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-—AF+-A=+—RHILFE

Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)

Geographical information 35 & R

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and sale of a range AEBTENFRERHEEESE - =
of products including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, A BEEM  RIEMREAR R Db)RE
health supplements and mark-up products and (b) provision of skin LS ERE - ERRKERBARIE
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty EIEFEB R REDTEI  AEBEA
training. The analysis of the Group's revenue by type of business for the W AIRZ KB ERRIVE R 2 D T &P EE5 o

year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets presented based on the geographical REBIERDEEREEMTHES
location of the assets as detailed below: T
2015 2014
=F-HF ZT-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
The PRC GRICiPN'3 232,020 232478
Taiwan =) 46,904 49,068
Others HAty 63 97
278,987 281,643
Information about major customers BREEEFEHR
The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed AEB2EPEREM R=-ZT—AF
10% or more to the Group's revenue for both 2015 and 2014. R ZT—MFMEFESFE  WEEMA

B-RPMREZWAMAER 2 WA
BiE10% °
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e ISRk MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

7. OtherIncome 7. Hftlzs
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest on bank deposits RITIF RS 11,721 13,508
Rental income from investment properties KEYE AW 23 146
Rental income from other properties EAbZEREE 2 el
and equipment 2,550 2,152
Financial refunds (Note) iRk (BsE) 8,527 2,134
Increase in fair value of investment properties & & 43 A B h1 843 278
Reversal on tax audit accrual (note 8) ISR (fI7Es) 2,668 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - B M2
plant and equipment - 231
Others EAh, 1,977 -
28,309 18,449
Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in MisE R EBE THEREMBARKERTE
which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will 1 2 BFECER P PR 4R ZMHE B B

receive financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government
grants by way of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However,
the refunds are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these
subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the

future.

The financial refunds represent unconditional tax refunds received from the
local government in compensation for taxes incurred and paid by the PRC

operating entities of the Group.
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8. Income Tax Expense

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—hE+-_RA=+—HIEE

8. FrEHiBAX

2015 2014
—E-hF —T—UF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
The charge comprises SHBRE
Taxation in PRC R B R BER IE
Current year KEE 32,024 33,358
(Overunderprovision in prior years BEFE (BERE) BETR (6,499) 3,666
Withholding tax on dividends IR S FEHF 8,510 1442
34,035 38,466
Taxation in Taiwan BBHIE
Current year REE 4,900 3,488
Overprovision in prior years B E R (1,697) _
Withholding tax on dividends % S FEFEL 2,120 1,226
Underprovision of withholding IREFEMBEE T2
tax on dividends 4,936 -
10,259 4714
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions  Z&78 K& H At Bl ARE R Fi 18
Current year KEE 4,518 2,939
Overprovision in prior years BEFERRERE (2,144) _
Tax refund of changing tax rate TR AT (14,368) -
(11,994) 2,939
Deferred taxation (note 26) IRIEFRIA (FitsE26)
Current year REE 1,262 (1,325)
33,562 44794
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

126

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. The statutory
withholding tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10%. As the Company has
obtained tax benefit approval from the tax bureau in 2014, which stipulate
that the withholding tax rate for Natural Beauty China Holding Limited
could be reduced to 5% for the dividend income from July 2011 to June
2017 and 7% for royalty fee from January 2012 to December 2014. Thus, in
the current year, the tax authority returned the prior years' over-paid taxes
accordingly and disclosed as tax refund of changing tax rate.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Taiwan and applicable
tax treaty, dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 13% under
Taiwan-Malaysia tax treaty, and 20% on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by Taiwan subsidiaries that are received by non-local
resident entities. In year 2015, the Taiwan tax bureau initiated a tax audit
on the Taiwan withholding tax affairs of a Taiwan subsidiary of the Group
for the years 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, and decided that dividend
withholding tax rate applies to the Group should be 20%, as the Group
is not applicable to Taiwan-Malaysia tax treaty. Accordingly, the Group
recognised an underprovision of withholding tax on dividends amounting
to HK$4,936,000 and other related expense amounting to HK$3,159,000
(under other expense).

The PRC tax bureau initiated a tax audit on the PRC tax affairs of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group for the years 2012 and 2013.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2015
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B EBI0%  RRAREZZT—MF
BERERNHWERIE  BAESF
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5% RAFHFIEGFERAEMEIRRER
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B7% o FILTEAFERHISHERERN
FELZEBMARIFER AR EFHENRT -

REBEQEREEERBTEURE BB B
WE BREFENHELEENB AR
HR &) P 15 3% FI i 2 R 37 63 FE AR R
TERBRZAEREHLBRABENHEER
20% - i & & AN 55 2R 7 20 A S AR B TR
MHBHERABEAH% - E_T—AFEH
ERBERERAERNBARZE—=
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that
the tax audit exercise is still at a negotiation stage and no conclusion was
reached. Based on various discussion with the PRC tax bureau, the PRC
subsidiary is in the process of collecting relevant information in order to
defend the tax position. The directors opine that given the time involved
in collecting such information, the PRC subsidiary might not be able to
safeguard the filing position for the said years, and accordingly recognised
an underprovision of tax amounting to HK$4,478,000 and other related
expense amounting to RMB4,932,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,934,000) (under other expense).

In the current year, the PRC subsidiary continued its various discussions
with the tax bureau and provided relevant information, and the tax bureau
has reviewed such relevant information and concluded on the tax audit
for the said years. Accordingly, the PRC subsidiary paid relevant expenses
amounting to RMB2,716,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,266,000)
(under other expense) and reversed overprovision of tax amounting to
HKS$4,478,000 and other related expense RMB2,216,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,668,000) (under other income).

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for both years.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

Fredimx (&)
HE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—H E#=F
REBBERATRDARERKHIPEERE
R HEM&m o BRI EP B ARER B
BEANSEwH - PEMNBAREREK
EHBEN - WEGHNBATMNRRIE
Mo BERAERKEELENTR
AR A B HO B B A B) 1) RE SRR ATAR RS
FHMRBIBR - B ERIEENER
& FERV BB T B 54,478,000 JT A E A
HENE R AR 4932000 (K4
E125,934,000/87T) (BIAHALFT) ©

AN R FR B A B B N A A B A o R A
HWRAEIT S E MR AEREEN
HEREARNEREASEETENT
EEEL G - FRAKEMNNE QR
AmMZNABEERARE27160007T (K
#9551 3,266,00078 7T ) (FIAEMEET) &
¢ (2] #2858 1% #54,478,00058 7T A E 4 40 78
HEASEARK22160007T (KHER
2,668,0007% 7T ) (FIAE AU E) ©

RERMEERE  GESEMSHIZ
17%z1 I -

BAENBF IR Lt WEEE 2 (H 5T ER
B2 16.5%5T & o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the ‘profit before tax’ per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

8. FEFHHEX

AEEHREAX HRGEBERNEMEEH
Was R FTRER B BDR RIS AR AT

2015 2014
—E-RHF —TmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before tax R A5 AT A1) 170,392 116,274
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits ERRMERANEERNZKR 2
of taxable entities in the countries Y ML S @ AR R
concerned (Note) STERIE (M) 65,643 24677
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR0 SZ 2 s r 22
for tax purpose 6,462 20,687
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG 2 B2
for tax purpose (24,397) (11,343)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERIEEE 2 B2 - 9,578
Underprovision of withholding % BFEFOR ST 2
tax on dividends 4,936 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously )R AR 2 BT% B 1R
not recognised (4,824) (5,159)
(Over)underprovision in respect of prior years  iB{EFE (FRREREME) BHET B (10,340) 3,666
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed BB ARE = EKTE AR
profits of PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries ZARDIRRHZ IRERIE B & 10,450 2,688
Tax refund of changing tax rate TR EIRFA (14,368) -
Income tax expense for the year REEMIAT M 33,562 44,794

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction
have been aggregated and presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-—AF+-A=+—RHILFE

Profit for the Year 9. XREEGRF
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at after RER MBI (FEA)
charging (crediting): THI&IF -
Staff costs: BT
Directors’emoluments (note 10) EEM<e (FizE10) 5,620 5,606
Other staff salaries and allowances H b8 T &N 280 96,751 107,498
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RINEFIFT BN
excluding directors: TEEES
— defined contribution plans (note 23 (b)) — EREHFEE (HH3E230) 15,836 16,518
~ defined benefit plan (note 23 (a)) — R (FiFE23G)) 355 290
Expense of share based payment SRR 9,334 1,095
Total staff costs BT A4R%E 127,896 131,007
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)3 = MREITE 33,832 38,544
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B R AR 2 S 95,861 104,216
Release of prepaid lease payments B A T A S5 iE 461 311
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN NS 3,381 3,802
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEKREZ
plant and equipment &8 CaF)) 7,343 (231)
Research and development costs FH B AN 3,679 3,707
Allowance for obsolete inventories, PREFERE GTABEXA)
included in cost of sales 4,417 5274
Advertising and promotion expenses BENHEERY 33,809 36,797
Net exchange gain ME H 5 RE (3,477) (1,686)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  ¥73% - &= &R RIE - 9,895
Impairment of other receivables H A R ERRURE - 12,511
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERFETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fifteen (2014: thirteen) ENFENTRAE (ZE—0F : +=
directors and the chief executive were as follows: B)EERFETHABZMEHOT ¢
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z—AF+-A=+—HLEFE
Directors
i
M Ms.NG Mr. M. Mr. Chief
Dr.SU D Patrick  Shieu Ms. ~ POON  Gregory M. Frands Ms. Total ~ Executive

DrTSAl  MrlEE  Chien-  SUSh- Thomas  Yemg  GONG YeeMan Michael CHANG GOUTEN  SuMei MrCHEN MrYANG — MilU  directors’ Ms.CHANG Total
YenYu MingTa  Cheng  Hsyu SEWERT Christina  Zhizhi  Awin  ZELUCK Hsiuguo MACHER THOMPSON Ruey-Long Tze-Kaing Chi-Chant emoluments KarenYiFen 2015
M.
Frandis fRes
BRI ZBE BB BNR RAE SRR EBR EER BETY BME GUTN  RBRE RAER BRI EME E3Me  RER &
Bt #£& Bt BT % £t  &r  £E RE %E WMOGR S S - S 3 &t 3t -%-1f
HKS000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKY000 HKS000  HKY000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Thn TEn TEn TEn THr THn TR TEn TEn TEr TEr TEr TEn THEr TER  THn TEn  TER

(Noteil) ~ (Notei) ~(Noteii) ~ (Note) ~ (Noteil) ~(Noteii) ~ (Noteil) (Notei) (Noteiv) (Notevii)
(N ) N ) A T 5 7 N ) S (&) (i)
fegs e 1000 -0 150 - - - - - -oom m W M § 4 365 8
Otheremoluments Etie
Slaresand oherbenefts  H&REfER - W 319 319 - - - - - - - - - - - 95 60 1045
Contrbutionsto SRR
rfement benefts SR
scheme 8 61 f Y] - - - - - - - - - - - 18 3 186
Fouityetted share s s
based payments BOIES - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - B 7 R )
Totgl emoluments ik 1038 408 161 1611 232 32 40 240 8 5620 9,090 14710
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
Directors
£
M MsNG N, Mr. Mr Mr. Chief
Dr.SU D Patrick Shieu FENG  POON  Gegoy  Frands M. Total  Brecutie
DA MLEE Chie SUSh- Thomas Yeing Jane  YeeMan  Michael GOUTEN  SuMei  MrCHEN  MIYANG  directors  Ms.CHANG Total
Yerfu  MingTa  Cheng Hyu ~ SEWERT  Chisna  Junyuan Awin - ZHUCK  MACHER THOMPSON  Rueylong  TzeKaing emoluments — Karen'YiFen 215
Mr.
Francis
BRE OMEE BB WP MEE SRR BEn BBR BTH cumN BEE BEE BT EEMe  fRER )
Bt %t B B R &= & £ £F weR & £ %% & FEFRT ZT-ME
HKS000  HKO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOMD HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
Thr ThAr TEr TEr TAr TR TEr Thr TR TEr TEr TR TEr A TEL  TER
(Notei) ~ (Note)  (Notev)  (Note)  (Notei)  (Note)  (Notei)
) N o) BN ) I ) N ) A ) N )
Fees we 1000 - 1250 1250 - - - - - 240 pL| 240 40 464460 - 4460
Otheremoluments Efiie
Salaies and otherbenefts  Z& R ftigx| - 38 39 0 - - - - - - - - - 1016 5319 63%
Contrbutons to EiER
reiement SElf
benefits cheme - 4 4 ) - - - - - - - - - 130 0 150
Fquitysetted share ERLEE
based! payments iR - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ] 3
Totalemoluments Heww 1000 T i 1621 - - - - - b bl b 1) 5606 6062 11668
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin resigned as directors
of the Company on 11 August 2015.

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON resigned as directors of the
Company on 18 December 2015.

Ms. GONG Zhizhi and Mr. CHANG Hsiuguo was appointed as directors of the
Company on 11 August 2015, and resigned as directors of the Company on
18 December 2015.

Mr. LU Chi-Chant was appointed as director of the Company on 18
December 2015.

Mr. FENG Janine Junyuan resigned as director of the Company on 29
October 2014.

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a management
bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that financial year of the
Group, as recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen ceased tot hold office as Chief Executive Officer with
effect from 1 January 2016.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.

e M IRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T-AFT-A=T-ALEE

10. EERFETHAEME @)

P e

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

REELTRBEBXEER T —HF
NA+—BBEARRES -

MEE L L BB L L Francs
GOUTENMACHER £ R A =B X = 14
—E-AF+t-_A+N\AEEARRE
$o

BPBALRFRBEER —T—HF
NA+T—BREZERESE RN =T —
EF+-A+N\BBERARAES -

ERSLER-_ZT—RFE+=-_A+/N\H
ERTAES -

BELTZXLR=_TE—WNFE+A=+NA8
BIAREES -

HTESISFTEEN ZAmEFME
SRR BEETA  ARLAER
TEBEARENEBYBFE ZAR
AR ARIGEEZARS 5% °

RIEZRETE _ZE—RNF-—A—HED
BEETHRAR -

RBE_Z—NFER-_FT—HF+_A=
T—RHIEMEFE  AEESERNESS
NEAME - ERRSIEEMARER,
FEINAREE K 2 S SEABERRAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

11. Employees’ Emoluments 1. EE#M<
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three rEBRARRFMNALHR  Efb =%
(2014: three) were directors and the chief executive of the Company —ENF:=F) BARRESERE
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The ZITHAER  BEIMEFBERLEX
emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two) individuals were as follows: MIE10E - R TR A (ZZT—HF -

ME) AL zBEmT

2015 2014
—g-HF —TNF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THERT T
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,068 4,459
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R {Rt@ Izt EIH 5k 24 9
2,092 4,468

The emoluments of the two (2014: two) individuals were within the WME (ZZE—UF : W) R AL

following bands: ZHENFATEE :

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
Headcount Headcount
AE AER
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001, 7C 2 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001,8 7C 22,500,000/ 7T - 2
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12. Earnings Per Share 12.
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$136,830,000 (2014: HK$71,480,000) and on
the number of 2,002,100,932 (2014: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of the
Company in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2015 and 2014 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the average market price
in both years.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

BRER

RRABHEE ABIEERERBF TIRE

R REAB AFE(GE FI49136,830,0007%8

JL (ZZ— D94 : 71,480,0008 7T) & &

WNZRA A B 1T AR E2,002,100,932%
T P04 : 2,002,100,9320%) T E

*"*EE& —mE - BEREE
Bz E TE““ﬁ A A R R AT
&£ J?Iﬁm—ﬁ%ﬂx%ZﬂﬁE%%ﬁﬁ
EEE 2 FAME -

13. Dividends 13. KB
2015 2014
—B-HF TmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution FRERBD RS
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.0392 per share R[N EIAR S — —FB— R F
for 2015 (2014: HK$0.021 per share) BH&0.0392%8 T (ZZ—M4F
FH%0021787T) 78,482 42,044
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.03188 per share IR AREIRE — —F— @¢
for 2014 (2014: HK$0.0163 per share &FR%0. 03188,%73 (ZE I -
for 2013) —E—=F8R00 63,%%571) 63,827 32,634
142,309 74,678

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2015 of HK$0.0292 per share (2014:
final dividend of HK$0.03188 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014), amounting to HK$58461,347 (2014: HK$63,826,978) in
aggregate has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EREHRE  EZERRNBE=ZT
—AF+_A=+—RHIEFERERE
FR0022BIT (ZE—HF : HEZZT
—OFE+—A=+—RHIEFERERE
HR%0.03188 L) © & $£58,461,3478 7T
— T P04 : 63,826,978 L) AR
RERRENGERITZRRBF A EL
HEBTAHER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

14. Investment Properties

14. REWE

HKS$'000

FAT
FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 January 2014 RZE—HF—H—H 5,963
Exchange realignment PE 5, % (326)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss PERER 2 A TEIG M 278
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+—_A=+—H 5915
Exchange realignment [EE 54, SR 8 (227)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBeRFER 2 A EE 836
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-A=+—H 6,524

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2015 and 2014 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia
Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members of the Institute of Valuers, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of
recent transaction prices for similar properties in the similar locations and

conditions.
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-—AF+-A=+—RHILFE

Investment Properties (Continued) 14. REWE (50
The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated on Fiti &Y REEWN EXXFR) R

freehold land in Taiwan.

BB KARELH -

Fair value Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy Valuation technique inputs(s) input(s) to fair value

D¥E TABRWAYE

=P8 fR{ER % FERTBERZBARE BN EZEER

Level 3 Direct comparison method Capitalisation rate, taking into account The higher the capitalisation rate,
= and income method of the capitalisation of rental income the lower the fair value

BEERLEREEE

The key inputs are:

TERABIER

1) Capitalisation rate;

2) Monthly rent;

3) Price per square metre
N BAMER:

2 AM:

3 BFIKRER

potential nature of the property, BAMtZRim @ AFEBIE
prevailing market condition

BEREE  ZERERBERKTATYEZ

BEEeREEENERME

Monthly rent, using direct market The higher the monthly rent, the
comparable and taking into account of higher the fair value

age, location and individual factors such  BFE#S @ AT E#HS

as road frontage, size of property and

layout/design of the base level

A ERAEETSALERLZRE

Nghe LB RERNEZE - thin—2

MERRE MERBERGR &

EEERMRD, Rt o

Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
direct comparable and taking into metre, the higher the fair value
account of location and other individual BF KBRS @ AFEBS
factors such as road frontage, size of

property, etc. of the base level

BFHARER  EREEMSALE

BIEERUEREAMEREZE -t

M—IEHBRIRE MEEES
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-T-AF+-A=t—AILEE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

136

15. ¥% - BERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Motor  fixturesand  Construction
land  Buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
KAKR #E
i B RENFEEE BERES RE  #EBRRE  EEIR &t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  TiErn Thn TERL TEL TEL Tér  TiErn
0ST kA
At 1 January 2014 RZE—F
—RA—H 1703 1883443 66,984 50516 2675 79470 19370 424581
Exchange realignment  [E 3 3§% (1,107) (681) (1,447) (1915) (107) (1373) (55) (6,685)
Additions 5 - = 44 1,249 1573 4057 11,04 18525
Disposals e - = (3622) (@) (1,283) (946) = (6272)
Transfer B = = 1656 1382 = 16,543 (19581) =
Impairment A - - (9,883) = = (12 - (9:89)
Written off sk = (380) (269) = = (954) = (1,623)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mE
+=-A=1+-H 16016 187382 53841 50811 2858 9,785 10938 418631
Exchange realignment  [E} {5 2310 (25436) (1927) 3434 119 4569 23 (17104
Additions 5 - 1,045 2891 629 = 49% 484 14403
Disposals L& - = (12,807) (277) (10) (41958) (79 (55431)
Transfer B = 11,576 8,829 (14327) = = (6,078) =
At31 December 2015 R=E-1E
+-A=t+-H 18386 174567 50827 40270 2967 4392 909 360499
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 January 2014 e 13
—R—H - 59115 25851 24188 2065 56,144 - 167363
Exchange realignment (B X 2% - (161) (834) (1,009) (55) (1133) = (3,189)
Provided for the year FREE - 2,784 12012 7003 254 16,291 - 38,544
Eliminated on disposals 1 ERF 8 = = (3622) (383) (1275) (8%3) = 6173)
Written off sy - (380) (289) = = (954) = (1,623)
At31 December 2014  RZ-E-ME
+-A=1+-H - 61358 33318 29803 989 69455 - 1993
Exchange realignment [ 33 352 - (2172) (2828) (1,889) (61) (569) - (7519)
Provided for the year EREE - 3,166 10293 5933 397 14043 - 33832
Fliminated on disposals 1A &R = = (11,303) (230) (10) (36,549) - (48089)
Transfer L2 - 3410 8829 (12,239 = = - =
At31December 2015  MZE—RF
+-A=t+-H - 65762 38309 21378 1315 46,384 - IBA
CARRYING VALUES ik s
At31 December 2015 M-E—R%E
+=A=1+-H 18386 108805 12518 18892 1652 18,008 909 187351
At31 December 014  RZE—ME
+=A=1+-H 16016 12604 20523 21,008 1,869 27330 10938 223708
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e RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—hE+-_RA=+—HIEE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15. ¥1% - BMERRE @)
The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are FHikAERE L REF (RAEWV L
situated on: MERR) LR
2015 2014
—B-HF T MF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT

Land in the PRC held under medium-term FAHR B K AR 45 AR HA 1t (5 A A

land use rights e s P i) 108,805 120,336
Freehold land in Taiwan N EVERFE KA SERE T 18,386 21,704
127,191 142,040
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than i BERZBEE (FEIR
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the BRON) IMESEERBUTFRFE :

following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil IRARREL =

Buildings 40 years EF 405

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period HEMERE RIE M EFHA b &t
of the lease and estimated useful A] £ A & Hi3ZE 104
life of 3 to 10 years (ABREB%E)

Machinery 510 years 7 R es 5—10F

Motor vehicles 3-5years B 3— 5%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 - 15 years RE - KERHZME 2—15F

In the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors conducted a HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—HFE

review on the Group's property, plant and equipment determined that BEZHUAEENYE  BERZEET

a number of those assets were impaired. Accordingly an impairment WEDRE — L EERRIE - AULERY

loss of HK$9,895,000 has been recognised in respect of property, plant ¥ - BB MR 159,895,000 T K R (E 18

and equipment. For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no Xe#HEZZTE-—RAF+-A=1+—8H1

impairment loss recognised in the profit or loss. FE  WRBEERBERBRK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

16.

138

Prepaid Lease Payments 16. BALHEER
2015 2014
—E-IF T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FHIT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise A48 > B A i E R HE
leasehold land rights in the PRC under AR B R B AR 15 P HA -+ {5 P
medium-term land use rights A HE T F AR 54,243 9412
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TLERSRAS AT T -
Non-current asset JEMEVEE 53,796 9,102
Current asset MENEE 447 310
54,243 9412
During the current year, the Group acquired a land use right from REE AEBNFEBBNEREE —
Fengxian government at a consideration of RMB38,180,000 (equivalent to FREBZEERGEREREBARYE
approximately HK$46,439,000), which is located in Fengxian Bay, Shanghai. 38,180,000t (48 & 146,439,000/ 7T) L
The land use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over 40 years. M TR - THERRRERE
HEA0GFHESH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T—

EE+-_A=+—RHIFE

17. Goodwill 17. &

HK$'000

FAET
COST BN
At 1 January 2014 RZE—HF—H—H 31,567
Exchange realignment DEE 34 S 3K (103)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NWFE+=-A=+—H 31,464
Exchange realignment IE)DL?%%( (1,226)
At 31 December 2015 R-—Z—RAF+-_HA=+—H 30,238
IMPAIRMENT B
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZE—NF—H—8 "

31 December 2015 “E-NE+-_A=+—HK
—E—hF+=-A=+—H 3,192

CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2015 R-E—FRF+-_BA=+—H 27,046
At 31 December 2014 N-_E—mNE+—-_/F=+—H 28,272

BBRERRNS  HECEIEEBY

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to an
individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in the
PRC CGU. The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2015 and
2014 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over five years
are extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount rate of 7% (2014:
8%). One key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.

HEEAEMN BIRFBEREHEE
AEMZRSELEEN ((ReELEE
i) e RZFE-—RFR-ZT—MF+=
A=+—AHEREEDSEE LR
BEEEN -

WeEEBMN 2B eFEDIREERE
EFEETE - fEAEZEREEEEH#
B2 AFHETRENERRRIEREED
ZRemETA ﬁﬁﬂizf/ﬁ‘i\mﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂ
BERRE 7 RE K7 MRE (ZF—

F : 8u)itEk - EREERE 77/?&27:—
BEEERRZEGBFBERA S REEHE
(BREBEHEELENE) - BRMEHR
MEEES 12 Ei‘%ﬁ&aﬁ%‘hﬂ%
LR EHEE - BEERE  HH&E
ﬂgj*“ZEH/\IETQEﬁ@Ji’:ﬂ:@ﬁ?X&ﬁE
PEABEV  REABERBHLRSESS
iz A B4R S 58 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T-RFt-A=t+—HILFRE

18.

Inventories 18. &

2015 2014

—E-FHF —F—OF

HK$'000 HKS'000

FEx FET

Raw materials ERE 25,225 25,386
Finished goods 2k 21,680 19,650
46,905 45,036

19. Trade and Other Receivables 19. ES R EHMEWERTR

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—F

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade receivables B SRR 47,963 53,262
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RAREE (6,753) (2/460)
41,210 50,802

Prepayments SEARE O 7,016 9,481
Other receivables E b pEINER TR 5,820 7,175
Total trade and other receivables 5 R EMEUERFRAREE 54,046 67458
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
The Group allows a credit period for 45 days to its trade customers. The

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19.

aging analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period as

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—AF+_A=+—HUSFE

5 RHEMBWIRR (@

AEBETHRSEFPOTAAZEE
B RBEWHMEHE REEAY
(MARRARREE) HEL25 2B SR

follows: WERKX (EMBRREER) Rk mH
T
2015 2014
=F-HfF —FTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Aged: ARER
Within 45 days 45HA 31,943 35,510
46 — 180 days 46— 180H 9,267 15,292
41,210 50,802

Including in the Group's receivable balances are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$9,267,000 (2014: HK$15,292,000) which are past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

AEBEREHARNE FERERA
B 15 4R IR T (89,267,000 7T (ZF — Y
15,292,000 7T) HAE ZRER S
HRAE B o

B2 RUERE I HERTREN K

A L
H< -

2015 2014
—E-IF —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Aged: ARER
46 — 180 days 46 —180H 9,267 15,292
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

19.

142

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The directors of the Company assessed the credit quality of those debtors
that the balances are past due by reviewing their financial position, the
past repayment record and the experience on any recent history of
default. The amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have no history of defaulting on repayments.

19.

5 RHEMBWIRR (@

ARREFHRREBTEEBANE
HEE BEARBRN - BENER
SR I 0 R 088 - R IBAS
BREERZ AT BULE - AEEL
R BB LR A R o

BEWHEPR - ARENBAMEER
RHEERFPNEEERETHGELA
ETHERAEE HUEFPNBEERES
BE - ABMLAAMIRENE S E
WERSOS B TEITIEEMNESL -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIFRESH
2015 2014
2% —FmF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Balance at the beginning of the year FHRER 2,460 1,536
Amounts recovered during the year FRYEEEE (324) (229)
Allowance on receivables FEM R SR H 4,906 1,159
Exchange realignment kS (289) (6)
Balance at the end of the year FARBEE 6,753 2460

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$6,753,000 (2014:
HK$2,460,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors conducted an
impairment assessment on prepayment and other receivables in relation
to a spa-resort project and determined that an impairment loss of
HK$12,511,000 was recognised.
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20. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

21.

During the current year, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and
placed bank deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in
order for CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the
Group's acquisition of the land use right (details are disclosed in note 16).
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the expirations of the
guarantee letters.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had placed the pledged bank deposits
in CMBC for the said transaction with carrying amount of approximately
RMB7,636,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,153,000), of which
RMB4,582,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,491,000) will be released
in 2016, RMB1,527,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,831,000) will
be released in 2017 and RMB1,527,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,831,000) will be released in 2018.

At 31 December 2015, the Group's bank deposits of US$697,000
(2014: USS$589,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$5,371,000 (2014:
HK$4,566,000)) was denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

0. EEHBITER RITERF

kBE

RER > AEESHEER T ERERS
BEERT ([HERT)) REREBH
ERRITERERERARBERTA
ZBEREBRFRDRE - S HEFRITER
FEIR K HR 12 BRBR AR o

R-ZZE—RE+-_A=+—1 A&
B iR S A R%7,636,0007T (8
B 499,153,0008 L) EHERRITER
FREBERT B ARKE4582,0007T
(FHE R %95491,00087T) R =T —~
FRERIKE - AR1,5270007 (FHE
491,831,000 78) R =T — L F R
BRI kA R#1,527,00000 (FE R
#91,831,0008 7T) BN =T — \F KR
HH o

R-E—RE+_A=+—8 &£¥A
697,0003 7t (= & — P4 £ : 589,0003
70) (A8 & 7 #95,371,000% 7t (— & — Y
F 14,566,000 7)) < AEBIRITHF
FoDIREEEEERIGEEE NS
BHEEHE -

1. EZREMENERR

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZT—uF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FHIT

Trade payables B S TR 14,942 18,577

Deposits from customers EFE#E 36,798 43,576

Other tax payables Hh A B IH 8,476 13442

Accruals & 47,499 62,841

Other payables H b FETARK 9,769 14,878

Total trade and other payables H 5 R E M E IR RE 117,484 153,314
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7 N ==

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE

21.

—ZE-AF+A=+—HILFE

Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

21. EZREMEMIRR (@)

RBEHREER  REZEBHFESR

52 B SN AR AR

Mran

2015 2014

=F-HfF —FTAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Within 90 days 90HA 13,239 16,075
91 days to 365 days 91HZ365H 54 223
Over 365 days HE365H 1,649 2,279
14,942 18577

BEEmZVPHEEHROA - AEHE
EFERBRARERBEE - AERAE
P ERFRIN R EFEERFRABN

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

22. Deferred Income 22, EEW =

2015 2014

—E-AEF —EF—OF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHT

Prepaid treatment fees TANERE 6,593 7577

ELR S IE AT P HEXTRBMER
EAFR XEBRRSWEZHE  HER
AR FRRMIRF S B R R -

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the
profit or loss upon the services to the customers are provided.
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes
at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved by the
relevant government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months' salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2015 and 2014 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2014: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

e M IRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T-AFT-A=T-ALEE

(a)

BAXEYREERAT

23. ERIRERFTE

EREBAEE
AEERENBARRERES
EBEE (RIER]) 2P REBARE
e AmETRERMERER - K
SEEETRREMAIAEERTH
Be BAXMNEERBAEZE
M o NEBIRZF S B E2%IEH
HE - AR ERBERERNERE
ERALE - RIBEBREFE - BEW
ZRZEARBOAT : RE15ER
BEE  SEUZAMEERMEA
e RINEF - R E1SERSF
Bz& BFAZFHEHAFN—E
A& 2 BRKEH - 1605 FT
BRKEHNE X TSHBB45E A H
& o NGB\ IR A AR
®&@H -

REBBBRKRSFEI AR 2 EH
FRE - DiREBIRR KR BARER
AR TS T BRERFT1S 2 B & fE R TE AT
SEFE  BRARMEBNER
RE TSHRERSEEZA
FE - BT ERE LB BEME
FRTERT B AN RAERTE - N
E-RFR-FTWF+ZA=F
—BZREHEHERB S ST
MBSz ABRETIH#TIT HA
FERBEEZEEE - LillEE
HERT  AEETRETERF
BRIRGTEI T 2EB A2% (ZF—N
F:2%) HENTFARERITER
RNAZIFRZAT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT-—AF+-A=+—RHLFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. ERBEHEE
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) TEEFE (&)
()  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the () HEETHREGERAKAZ
actuarial valuations were as follows: FERERDAT -
2015 2014

—ZE-hfF —E—JOF

Discount rate BIR & 1.80% 1.90%
Expected return on plan assets SHEIEE 2 BR[O 3R =& 1.80% 1.90%
Expected rate of salary increases YA EIE &1 iR 3.25% 3.25%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan BEHEERTIEEZT
assets was HK$247,000 (2014: HK$1,254,000). 18 /247,000 T (—F— M

£ 11,254,000/ 7T) ©

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined (i) AEEBRFAERKZIERE
benefit plans are as follows: BFFEISEOT ¢
2015 2014
—E-hF —Z
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Current service cost I8 B AR TS A AN 122 54
Interest on obligations BEIEH A 256 260
Expected return on plan assets SHEIE E 2 FAHAE R (23) (24)
355 290
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-—AF+-A=+—RHILFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. RREFRGE @
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) THEEFE (&)
(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income inspect (il ANEBEEFAHMEEKS
of the defined benefit plans are as follows: R THEEMNGE B
T

2015 2014

—2-EF —TOF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Remeasurement on the net defined Bt E/F ERBEMNEE -
benefit liability:

— Actuarial loss arising from — BT EELEZBEEE
remeasurement 398 498
— Expected return on plan assets —FTEIB E 2 TEH 3R (51) (10)
347 488
(v)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of vy, AEEBEBDFALZE TR
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in WERZEBERAMNFEES 2
respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BR ¢
2015 2014
—®B-h1fF —F—mEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Present value of funded defined BEHERRAEEENEBRE
benefit obligations 12,579 13,874
Fair value of plan assets TEIBECATE (247) (1,252)
Net liability arising from defined ERENAEEE FEE
benefit obligations 12,332 12,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT-—AF+-A=+—RHLFE

23. BRERGFE @)

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) TEEFE (&)
(V)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v), AEETFBEAEHEREZ

obligations in the current year were as follows: FEhmr -
2015 2014
—E-HF —TmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January m—H—H 13,874 14,322
Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 122 184
Interest on obligations BB E 256 260
Benefits paid BfEF (1,549) (603)
Actuarial loss BEEE 398 498
Exchange differences on foreign plans /85Nt EIME X =58 (522) (787)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 12,579 13,874

(vl Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current vi) AFEEFHEEEAFECE
year were as follows: BT :

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE—OF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January R—H—H 1,252 1,346
Contributions from the employer BEFH= 508 548
Expected return on plan assets FTEIEE 2 TEHA B3R 23 24

Benefits paid BEfEF (1,549) (603)
Actuarial gains EE S 51 1

Exchange differences on foreign plans /@5 EIFE i Z= 48 (38) (74)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 247 1,252
Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE C B B (23) 10
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(a)

Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a)

(vi)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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23. RIKRERFHE (&)
EHEEFTE (2)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on
historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market
for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

(vi)

AEEHBEEATEL S
BT : ()

E=MEBRBEHRIE IR
BERERBRELRONTEY
BEMSART _EAAZE
BIHETT

AEIEEZEZB2RAARR
HERESEERSBERER
BEELAFEZAALLN

A

14

2015 2014

—E-HF —T U

% %

Deposits with financial institutions B R 17 3K 17.94 19.12
Short term bills REEIEE 2,54 1.98
Stocks &1n 9.11 1215
Bonds E5 12.18 11.92
Others EHi 58.23 54.83
100.00 100.00

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$1,094 (increase by HK$1,271).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by
HK$1,121 (decrease by HK$969).

ErITRETGHMAEIERE
BRAMBAERRBERGFSE
e A TERED M IRE
EERBIRNBFEHREER 2
EEAREHRFME EM
REEEF TR MERTE

— R BEE X CA
A) 10018 £ & - A
N EB R 1,094
PETC (B 01,271787T) o

—  WREHFHSIERIEM
CERA) 1% Bl EEE®
FIMERS AL 11,1217 7T
CRi 96978 7T) ©
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

150

(Vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used

in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

(b) Defined contribution plans

(i)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and
6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there
is no cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme.

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

(b)

Defined contribution plans (Continued) (b)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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23. RIKRERFHE (&)
EHEMEKE (B)

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$15,836,000
(2014: HKS$16,668,000) represents contributions paid on
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

(if)

AREBEPBEAENB AR
BERTERFEE ZBER
BEENKRBHEIKE - B
BB ARERETBIER
ME RETEAEREEZ
mEEEREHEEREEZTE
BUBRNGTE - BEEAE
WER Z R RE TR B A B
FIERZRTE - HEFNE
KB 2 BN & KR F 5
AE e FERTFEEREAR
BRRBTHPRARE - MA
SEAEREBERREE
Mg HRBERETHEE
EREAEEFBEAEREES
ZE® - fBA A TR
8o B B 582 4868
BAKBHME - B TIEL £
MERHRFI - AEEBE
EREBEREE -

FAEBERRZBRAE A
15,836,000%8 JT (= T — M
& 116,668,000/ L) © Jh &K
SEERITEFEE DAk
FERTZEETEI 2K o
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24. Share Capital 24, BRAR
Number
of shares Share capital
RGHE [N
HK$’000
THERT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each HRAEBEEIT ERK
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZE—WHF—H—H
31 December 2015 “E-MFE+ZA=+—HK
—T-hAFt-_A=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZE—NF—H—H "
31 December 2015 —AOFE+-—A=t—BxK
—E-FRF+-RA=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210

25.

152

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly the same
as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods was approved at the
Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) on 13 May 2011
the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was terminated at the AGM
on 13 May 2011.

. Upon the approval of
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less
than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
option.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or the

refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to shareholders’

approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

As at 31 December 2015, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the New
Scheme was nil (2014: 81,685,713) (representing nil (2014: 4.1%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date).

25.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SR ESTE ()

AREEABATNAANESS ((2F
& 1) EH B T R PR
2 AR A 2 BRIT R E -
EAERT - HARE L RRED
HHERTE - REHE - RODE
BARMESEXRBEET - HETA
BRT  RBEREEAUTERZE
BE QRARERL B (BARE
20) ROEHIFEEREEARK
B RN EEABRIRERE B
FMEELEA - RONBIHEARE
FEREHYTHE o

KRN RIRERESCHERT - IRIEFA
SRR D RREFTS R DB E - TF
BRAAREMEBZEBEITRGO M
10% ° REEARRNFIRE FLRBERT - F7
ATHEER—EFEANEEE KA §EE
B2 RBRIET AT R TR T R &
BT 2RHEE - TEBBAARGEM
BRZEEITROMI% E2RERNE
VHERTEEREHE (TRE) REBH

I+ B A AR A ER 2 BRENEB
RABEEITAAE0.1% @ SARER H A

B D W (B 5T 8 2 48 {E 8 155,000,000/
TG WEESES AR BRI A o

AREAAEESEER D BB SR
REMRBE K S AT At B IR B 2 SR A
AT RERRERRNSELILE
R TRk FRTE -

A RRIEF T B R AR A (HHBAF)
EAEMEA D REERRTEZRE
REETATERET 2 RODBE - T
BHEBEARA (XERHMBLAR) TEE
BT ZBERBRES230%  ME R
R EEUMBITESERARE - B
TRREART (KBERMEBAR) 2F
AT 8 R AR HE -

R—_ZE—HF+_A=+—8 " BIEH
SFEIEREBMNARITE Z BIREFT SR
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. RIREHE (@)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options TEREERNEHE-_ZT—NFE-_FT—H
granted under New Scheme held by employees during the years ended FTZA=1T—BILFERRBREN
31 December 2014 and 2015: EELETAHEERECRKREZE
& :
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Granted Cancelled forfeited Granted Cancelled forfeited
Exercisable Evercise  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Dateofgrant  period price  at1.12014 the year the year the year at1.1.2015 the year the year theyear  at31.122015
H=5-m%F R=%2-1% R=%-1%
-B-B Engd/ -B-B Erg¥/ t=R=t-B
RiAH i e AR EREL EREs L4 WA EREL R Lt WA
19 Aprl 2013 19Apil 2022 to HKS099 B5468 - - (9009454) 14515228 - 11712288 (2802940) -
5= 18 Apil 2023 09 0T
BAthE Z3-—FWATAAZ
ZZZZERATIA
10May 2013 10May 20220 HKS099 38039918 = = = 38039918 - 38039918 - -
2% 9May 2023 099077
RAtH “E--FRRTRZE
ZEZ=FAANA
6May 2014 6May 202310 HKS099 - 3453639 - (13013655) 21522584 - 18519433 (3003151) -
“5NE 5 May 2004 099077
ili )= “Z-SFRfARZ
ZZ-MERARA
2December 2014 2 December 2023t HKS099 = 7607983 = = 7607983 - 7607983 - -
I 3 1 December 2024 0990 7T
Gt ot = S = -
“ECmET-R-R
3 March 2015 31 Mach 20240 HK%099 - - - - - 3500000 3500000 - -
k3 30 March 205 090ET
SA=T-B ZEBCME=A=1-RZ
e T
61564600 2144000 - (22023109 81685713 3500000 79379622 (5806091) -
Bxercisable at the end of the year Nil
EREAE E
Weighted average exercise price HKS099 HKS099 HKS0%9 HKS0%9 HKS099 HKS099 HKS0%9 HKS0%9 Nil
ETSEE 09T 0BT 0BT 0MET  0WET  0WET 0BT (%R E
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 4 April 2011, the Company granted share options (2011 Options”)
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 90,895,381 shares
and was vested over a four-year period subject to the achievement of

performance targets determined by the board of directors.

On 19 April 2013, the Group cancelled 3,363,528 2011 Options and
accounted for such cancellation as an acceleration of vesting and
therefore recognised immediately approximately HK$919,000 that
otherwise would have been recognised for service received over the
remainder of the vesting period.

Following the cancellation of the aforesaid remaining 2011 Options, an
aggregate of 42,144,222 share options (“2014 Options”) (2013: 74,478,151
share options (“2013 Options”)) were granted to the Chief Executive of the
Company and other employees of the Group during the year ended 31

December 2014. Details are set out below:

25.

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

wu\Hn*E—l-EJ (#®)
RZEBE—FWNANA » ARAEET

EERDA u/u\E§E—57L9O 895,381 B& A% 15
Z u/uHXﬁé ( ﬁE u/uHXEE) ﬁﬁ-a o
fo”*b%llfliw 5B BEGGRME

ERESEMBEECBFRAAR -

R_ZE—=FMA+NB AEETHE
#273,363,528- 8 ——ERWHE - W
tt%%%ﬁ%bu%ﬁ%%)\,ﬁﬁ © FR I BB R
REBR N ET AR T RE AT
BRERATER 2SR - £919,000%8
e

SRS T T —FRRER - K
SRR -_Z—NWF+=-_A=1+—HMAE
BREHREEABR L BET42,144222
BiEg((ZE—HERRE)(ZE—=
F 74478151 RBRE (2T —=FR

PRAE L) - FEIFEINAT -
Number of
share options
granted
RUFZREHE
Grant date Ecge =k i
6 May 2014 —E—WFRARHA 34,536,239
2 December 2014 —EF-OF+=-HA=H 7,607,983
42,144,222
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Each of the 2013 Options and 2014 Options (collectively “the options”)
should be vested over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial
year 2014 (in the case of 2013 Options), year 2015 (in the case of May
2014 Options) and year 2016
(respectively referred to as the “First Year’, as the case may be) respectively,

(in the case of December 2014 Options)

at the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the First Year and up to a
maximum of 20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the
achievement of performance targets for each financial year as determined
by the Board as its sole discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining an
Eligible Person (as defined in the share option scheme of the Company) at
the time of each vesting of the Options. Also, the option holders can only
exercise the 2014 Options and 2013 Options nine years after the date of
granting the options provided that if the employment or service with the
Company or any of the subsidiaries of the option holders is terminated
with cause or the option holders resign from their employment or service
without good reason (as stipulated in the share option scheme), the
2014 Options and 2013 Options granted but not yet exercised will lapse
automatically. Accordingly, the vesting period for these options under
accounting treatment is regarded as a nine-year period, which is from
the date of grant to the beginning of the earliest exercisable date of the
options.

The estimated fair values of the 2014 Options granted on 6 May 2014 and
2 December 2014 were approximately HK$2,696,219. These fair values
were calculated using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model. On 31 March 2015,
the Company granted share options (“2015 Options”) to certain employees
to subscribe for a maximum of 3,500,000 shares and was vested over
a nine-year period subject to the achievement of performance targets
determined by the Board of Directors. The estimated fair value of the 2015
Options was approximately HK$404,950. The fair value was calculated
using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model.
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The inputs into the model were as follows:

25, RIRHESTEl (&)
BEERZHA2HMT :

Grant date 06.05.2014 02.12.2014 31.03.2015
=F-mFE  =F-mNF =F-IF
B A ANHAEH +=—A=H =A=+-—8
Weighted average share price R A InkEF AR (E HK$0.35 HK$0.75 HK$0.65
as at date of grant 0357%87T 0.7587T 065787
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$0.99 HK$0.99 HK$0.99
0.99% 7T 0998 7T 0.99%7T
Time to maturity B HAHARR 10 years 10 years 10 years
106 106 106
Expected volatility TEETR IR 39.25% 40.98% 41.69%
Dividend yield AR Al 2= 4.47% 435% 5.49%
Risk-free interest rate R e Al = 2.07% 1.73% 142%
Fair value of share options RAxIE 2 A FE HK$0.0391 HK$0.1769 HK$0.1157
0039178 7T 0.17698 7T 0115777

HERREATEMERCZHER

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the

options.

Expected volatility was determined by historical daily volatilities of the

Company’s share prices as at the valuation date.

R DERES Z&EMGBFMIEL -
BB &
BEHFM

=

HER L EHRBE AT

o

BHREDREBEHERBARFK
BrBEZRREETE
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Share Option Scheme (Continued)

On 4 September 2015, Next Focus Holdings Limited (“Next Focus”) entered
into an agreement to acquire (the “Acquisition”) the other 50% in the share
capital of Starsign International Limited, which controls approximately
65.63% of the share capital of the Company, not already owned by it from
CA NB Limited ("“CA NB"). CA NB is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Next Focus is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately held as to 40
per cent, 30 per cent. and 30 per cent. by each of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu, Dr. Su
Chien-Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu, respectively. Each of Dr. Tsai Yen-Yu and
Dr. Su Chien-Cheng is currently an executive director while Dr. Su Sh Hsyu
is currently a non-executive director of the Company.

The closing of the Acquisition took place on 16 September 2015. Next
Focus is required to make a mandatory general offer for all the offer
shares of the Company pursuant to Note 8 of Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong
code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) and to make an
appropriate offer to the option holders for all share options in compliance
with Rule 13 of the Takeovers Code by way of cancellation of the share
options (collectively, the “Offers”).

On 22 September 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved
to immediate vest all unvested Options granted in 2013, 2014 and 2015
pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme. Accordingly, the Group
recognised all unrecognised share based payment expense in the current
year. Following acceptance of the Offers, the relevant all share options
together with all rights attaching thereto were cancelled in December
2015.

The Group recognised approximately HK$9,334,000 (2014: HK$1,095,000)
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in relation to share options granted by the Company during the
current year.
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26. Deferred Taxation 26.

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and
movements thereon during the current or prior years:

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

ESERE
REERBEFERRZ EBRTHE
BE (B URAEBHEIIMT

Allowance Revaluation
forbad and of Defined
doubtful Inventory investment benefit
debts provision properties liability
Bff EH

AUERE  BERG  RAENR  RAAR
HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR ThT ThT

Undistributed

Other  eamingsof

Unrealised  short-term PRCand

profitson  temporary overseas
inventories  differences  subsidiaries Total

HE AR

R

ARE  RMEH KMELFZ

FEEN  EREE  A2REA st
HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HKS000
TR ThT ThR TR

At 1 January 2014 it
—A-H 379 249 763 5140 5770 (752) (10575) 974
Exchange redlignment [ X 53% ) (13) (1) (281) (26) 49 % (290)
Credit (charge) to profit ~ PMBERETA
orloss (48%) 248 - (49) 61 1,006 78 (2688) (1383)
Earnings distributed BAREA - - - - - - 2668 2668
At31December2014  RZE—RF
—A—A 625 26 674 4920 6,750 (625) (10571) 2009
Exchange redlignment [ 3% (37) (199) ) ®3) (164 12 374 (139)
Credit (charge) to profit ~ EZRETA
orloss (48%) 1,100 3097 477 2,741) (4939) 1,564 (10450) (11,892)
Farnings distributed ENRET = = = = - - 10630 10630
At31 December 015 RZZ—T1E
+-F=1+-8 1688 3134 1,109 20% 1647 951 (10017) 608

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$136,060,000 (2014: HK$151,607,641) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$139,409,000 (2014: HK$170,948,000).

RIRERBEER  AEBBRSEB
TH &5 18 #9136,060,00078 7T (—Z— P04 :
151,607,641/ 7T) Al BIEH SR @A) o
R AERETE B &5 I R - B It &
HEARBEBHBERECERBELE -

AEEBFHET B B KR KGN B
AREIEBEZEENF—A—HEBAEAL
ZARDIREF - 1E 2 BUE T T 85
H RRAREERALARFGHAR
ARERAELSIK - ASBEEREB
EHUR R 2 B R =R R R B
8 #9139,409,000% T (= & — M@ F :
170,948,00056 7T ) °
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e RRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

27. Operating Leases 27. READ
The Group as lessee REBIERARBEA
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises and FRN - AEERBSEHARERARL
stores under operating leases as follows: EVERIEHHEHSOT ¢
2015 2014
S T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Minimum lease payments FIEESRFR 17,055 18,909
Contingent rental payments ARSI 20,255 17,947
37,310 36,856

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

RBEHREER - NEBRET AR
HEREHNAGN 2 BRRER S H&E
REZIEBERIDT

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE—OF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 13,527 12,795
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZFERF (BIEEREME) 8,676 16,664
Over five years HBidRF 558 1,380
22,761 30,839

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable,
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such contingent rentals.
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27. Operating Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Property

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$2,573,000 (2014:
HK$2,298,000), net of outgoings of HKS$1,011,000(2014: HK$608,000) for
renting office premises. All of the properties held have committed tenants

for the next one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Rk M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—AF+_A=+—HUSFE

. REFRY |

AEBEAEHBEA

L3
FRAHRDAMBzDERS KT R
2,573,000% 7T (= & — I 4 : 2,298,000
) HEHBRBEERAZWEMRX
1,011,000 7T (= & — P8 4F : 608,000/
) c REBERBZMAMERRR—Z
R FEBEREEM -

RBEHRGEER - AREEBEFER]
#z BREEESNRET

2015 2014
—E-AF —FT—mEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 3,419 1,385
In the second year to fifth year inclusive FEERF (BREEEMSF) 3,476 1,083
Over five years TR 2,460 =
9,355 2,468
28. Capital Commitments 28. EXREE
2015 2014
—®B-h1fF —F—mEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FHTT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition = E &MB AR RER S BHE &R
of property, plant and equipment BEEREREYEE
contracted for but not provided BB K& 2 BRI
in the consolidated financial statements 5,920 1,475
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures 29. RERBBMALIRG 2RE
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related FR - AEEDHERBA THITEAR
parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the 5 o BIBH RIS EMMRAZHEE -
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The FRABAMATTRRRBEEALT - F
significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows: N AEEZERBEATETZIERAR

CLUNE
(A) TRANSACTIONS (A) X5
()  Connected parties (i) PBEEAL
2015 2014
—E-1F —TmEF
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$'000 HKS$'000
NGE REME BT FAT

Companies controlled by individuals who collectively
have joint control over the Company’s ultimate holding
company and are also executive directors
of the Company:

SRR RIS KL B RAFEIR 2\ AR A A3 A 2
ATTEEZ MAAANLAFEFIZA]

MEEABIMERIXHEEESE Rental income - 13
ikl G
SEBHERBEERNHER AR Rental income 15 15
HeWas
ZRELERHERAT Rental income 15 5
HeWa
Company controlled by substantial shareholder:
FERRHTFEH A
CANB Limited (Note) Consultancy fee expenses 2,944 4416
BRERXL
Directors of the Company:
ARAEE -
Individuals who collectively have joint control Rental expenses 6,823 7142
over the Company’s ultimate holding company e
and are also executive directors of the Company
SRAREHARRNKLER A BFRRAREAA
AITESZEAAL
Note: the consultancy services agreement with CA NB Limited was MI5E :CA NB Limited 6 & F3 #
terminated in September 2015. BRE_T—AFNAKL -
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—hE+-_RA=+—HIEE

29. BENBBAIXRZZHE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (%)
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (A RZ (&)
The remuneration of directors and other members of key (i) FEEEAEZIRMHN
management during the year was as follows: EEREMEBEEAESR
FANZHMEIT :
2015 2014
—2-HF ZF0F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Short-term benefits kG HAtE 7| 9,924 21,799
Post-employment benefits Bzt - 152
Equity-settled share based payments IR At a4 AR D 15X - 723
9,924 22,674
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EZRFTETBABZHE

determined by the remuneration committee having
regarded to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

THEFMEZBESKL2E @7
RARMGBERETE -

BAREMRRERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

g2 A

7 N ==

29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

164

(B)

OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

0]

(if)

(iif)

On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with a director of the Company. Under
the agreements, the director agreed to license a number of
trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive basis, for a nominal
consideration of NTS$1. The licensing agreements will be
effective till the expiry of the registration of the respective
trademarks, which are in 2015 and 2019.

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-
Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-
free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks

on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu as the licensor and the
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement
pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a
non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and
irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use
certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10.

e M IRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

29. BENBBAIXRZZHE

(&)

(B) EHEftbZH (&)

(iv)

BAREMRRERAR

RZZEZENFTATER -
EREELT - HEMNEL
#R =335 18 1+ KNatural Beauty
Magazine Yang Chio Ling ({E
REEA) BARDE (ERE
EAN)IUEEEEE - &
I HEAOB T ZRE
MAEAEES THRE -

R-ZBTFAFETHATAR -
EREEL ERE#EN) K
RRE (ERERET) 7]
MR AR o UL RE
TA0B T2 RME - MER
RAOTBEMIEER - RIFATE
ERE  Br XKAMET
AR B R R A - A
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e ISRk MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

30. AR T ZBBEMRRKE
AR ZHBERRBEBS T -

follows:
2015 2014
—g-HF —T-[NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE 169,398 169,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU I /B A FIFRIE 109,054 252,354
Other receivables HithpEUs AR R 852 856
Bank balances and cash IRITEF MRS 3,544 723
282,848 423,331
Liabilities afE
Other payables H A FEATARK 3,433 2,728
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHE A FF0E 29,712 34,690
33,145 37418
Net assets BEFE 249,703 385913
Capital and reserves AR AN R (4
Share capital &N 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) & () 49,493 185,703
249,703 385,913
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30.

31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

30. KATZHBARRIBEE (@)

Note: Mtz -
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RPEE IRERE REERN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET FHET
At 1 January 2014 R=E—MF—A—H 41,016 680 227,855 269,551
Loss for the year AREEZEE - - (10,265) (10,265)
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment R RE TS A E R SR - 1,095 - 1,095
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) ERBEDIR IS (FizE13) = - (74,678) (74,678)
At 31 December 2014 RZZB—NF+-_A=+—H 41,016 1,775 142,912 185,703
Loss for the year REFEE = = (3.235) (3,235)
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment RIRA S EE RN K - 9334 - 9334
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) HRBDIR RS (FizE13) = - (142,309) (142,309)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RFE+_A=1+—H 41,016 11,109 (2632) 49,493

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

31. EXERER
AEBERETEEARRETERET
BEQEET  CHEEREESRRA
T RAEREFHRADR - AEH
v BEEREEERR -

AEEZEANEBEERENREEE
MARARNRARIGEA ANEEERD > BRED
BT - RBRRERT

RRABEEBFF—ERTERERE -
R LS ET—R EFQ@ERE
ERARERERZBBRR - RIFE
F2EF  AREBEBIRMNEA - %
TR R R HBETHEB 2T
A FEERBEASE -
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e

B R R P RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—HAF+_A=+—RHLFE

32. Financial Instruments

168

32a.

32b.

32. T A

Categories of financial instruments 32a. R T AR
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZE—peE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables BERNMEWERR (BIEES
(including cash and cash equivalents) FIRGEHEY) 558,904 641,260
Financial liabilities EHaE
Amortised cost HESHRR 24,711 33,454

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group's exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need

arise.
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances
at the reporting date. For bank balances, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of balances at the end of the
reporting date were outstanding for the whole year. 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease (2014: 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease) are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points higher/5 basis points
lower (2014: 20 basis points higher/5 basis points lower) and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 would increase
by HK$1,005,000/decrease by HK$251,000 (2014: increase
by HKS$1,167,000/decrease by HK$292,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.

e M IRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE_ZT-—HFE+_A=+—RHILFE

32. €@ T A (&)
32b. MEEREEBEREE (&)

misEkE (&)

(i)

BAXEYREERAT

FIEmbfE (&)

BURE DT

AT 8URRE DT TIRIBERAT
BIERNRE AHMEY 2 A
ZRBMETE - MRTTERF
mE - PMIHREHREBH
BREAZRTSEEFRE
MiwE- AT EEREAER
7 R R ) = [ i B PR A 22 20
18 2 % 48 hn Ko 518 2 F R
—ZE M5 20fEEERE AN
KSBEERRD)  RRERE
BUHMNERZEBEEEE 2
BECI

it 1) 2= 18 Hn20f8 2 25
SEXEE (ZT P4 : #n
2018 &2 R ASEE )
i AT A ot B B
REBEBE-_T—AF+=
A=Z+—BULEFEZBFE
% ) 18 12 101,005,000 7T,
B 251,000 T (ZF — Y
4 ¢ 3% 901,167,000 T, B
4292000 7T) * EEHR
RNEBBRITEFEE 2 F
REK
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e B R TR AR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

RE-FAF+-A=+—AILEE

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group's subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to
HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks and pledged bank deposits with good reputation.

170  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2015

32. €@ T A (&)
32b. I EREEBERBE (&)

misEkE (&)

(i) EHmELE
REBEBRBUIINEFEZR
THFR - HSAKEARI
PE R o

7N 5% [ 3 4 NS S UK o
R EEREGERIIER
B AR ERTER  ZE
I EASMNERE ©

EEERR ARAKEAX
B ZHUREENE A
Az ER St ETEHE -
BN 5 B B K SN E R
@ o SR EB TS
U SNE R R & K -

EERK
RZE—RF+_A=+—8"
AEEMEH 2 &HaEERRE (D
REBBRETNARERBTEEM
AIReELE CWBER) DIREEEE
MBMARKATSEEBRES/M
BECEAE ATZEREEE
[Epe - AREEEREDZIR—AEA
B HEETEERSE FHEER
T HAME IR - RIBES
BB < BRI TAE o loh - AEE
MeRSHEHREE BRI ER
B 5E% I e e - wREH
AT UL B SRIE 1 H 2 S (B s 18 4
e BEN - NRRBESRAENR
B EERBBERERLD °

mBEEEERBRAR  REAR
BFNREEREZRT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)
32b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

32c.

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, the ten largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 28% (2014: 10%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 6% (2014: 3%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC excluding Hong Kong, which accounted for 88%
(2014: 92%), and Taiwan, which accounted for 11% (2014:7%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2015.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2014 and
2015.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

e M IRAR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries

tements

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 and 2015 are

33. B A RFE
RZE—NER_T-—RF+_A=+

as follows: —RB - AAFRIMBARGEAT :
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iifras/
AMRIR BEIR FRARENEAT
ARER Bewy HRELBRERE FiisERTRATELA A58 TEXR
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# 53 B% 53
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-3f -3 -E-1f “T-0F “%B-RF LM C2-3F CEMF
Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC 15529,980,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited hEIRRE 299800007 beauty products
LEafEtaRRAR: HERHERRIHERER
*RER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanfian The PRC RIMB8,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of skin care
Cosmetics Company Limited mEAR ARE80000007T and beauty products; provision of
HaafE=BERERAR beauty treatments and Spa services
HERBEEBRFRER |
RUSAEE L el
(Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics  The PRC RMB2500000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited EIARE ARE5000007T products; provision of beatty
A EREERERAR treatments and skin care and
beauty consulting and training
HEEERFAER |
REEAEELEER
FRERRH R
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC 591,480,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Production and sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company Limited* B 14800007 beauty products, aromatherapeutic

(Formerly known as Shanghai Full-
Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited)

LEanzERhmARAR!
(A LARRIERARAA)
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HE_Z-—hE+-_RA=+—HIEE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B ATFE @
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iEL/
IR BES ARARANEAR
NE2 Ty HREERRE FsERTRATELA EE ELE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B& 53 B% [ f:3

2015 2014 2015 014 2015 014 215 2014
“E-1f “E-F Z§-EF -TNF CE-1fF “T-UF CB-EF CTQE

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan NT$201,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited (Formerly aE 20100000037 5% beauty products
known as Ntural Beauty FERHEREREDER

Cosmetics Company Limited)
BREENHERAERAR
(HRBEREHARROERAR)

Huei Yao Investment Company Taiwan NT$122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100% ~ Investment holding
Limied )| 1203403 2 % RAER

BERARNARAT

Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT$50,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
Company Limited A 500000003 &% training
hERERANRLE REXRBERBRE
RiERAR
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609858 100% 100% - - - 100% - - Investment holding
SRER Class B shares RERR
MYR10000
(Class A shares
B RBDH
68609858
ARERESS
10000
Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
SRED FREEE products

HERERZAER

(Great Glamour Company Limited By US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
AEAEREE  S000ET REER
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HE_Z—AE+-A=+—RHIEE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B A RIFE (&
Registered capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
imes/
IR BER FRARENEAT
AER Bewd HEEERRA RO RTRAEELA 5@ TERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Bi B EB R

215 2014 2015 2014 2015 014 215 2014
“E-1fF “F-PF Z8-EF -T-NF CE-1fF “T-F CB-EF CE3QE

Next Success Interational Limited ~~ BVI US$100 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ERGARES 100%7C RERR
Fortune Investment Global Limited ~ BVI US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ARARAREE  S000ET RAEak
Natural Beauty Bio- Technology Hong Kong HKS10000 - = 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong kong) Company Limited &% 100007 provision of beauty treatments
BREENRE (F) ARAA HEVHERRIIEAER
Natural Beauty Ching Holding Limited - Hong Kong HK$200000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
BREEERERAA B 20000ETC REER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med The PRC 552,600,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
Company Limitec® HEARE 260000057 supplement
FEEREENESERLA EEREERER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Beauty The PRC RMB6,000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Beauty consulting; wholesale and
Supplies Company Limited REARE ARE60000007 retal ofskin care and beauty
(Formerly known as Shanghai products
Natural Beauty Resort Company FABRRE : HERTEEER
Limited) XPER
HRERE AR ERAR
(A LEEAEEARR
ERAA)
Notes: Bt 5
* The subsidiary is foreign investment enterprise with limited liability in the * ZMB AR AREARETINEDE -
PRC.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the RER S ERNER R - #BLEE B
end of the year or at any time during the year. NEDBETEMEAESE ZEFES o
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LR T

Results E S
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F —T——F —T—=-F —T-NF —B-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FET FET FAT FHExT
REVENUE WA 591,295 483,438 439421 505,761 506,913
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRE A A 173,647 155,251 83,052 116,274 170,392
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FIERiEx (58,475) (36,143) (24,593) (44,794) (33,562)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 115,172 119,108 58,459 71,480 136,830
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: PR AL FEMERER (B548) -
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ARATEEA 115,123 119,268 58,269 71,480 136,830
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RIS 49 (160) 190 = -
115,172 119,108 58459 71,480 136,830
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LYY

Assets and Liabilities

EERERE

At 31 December

n+=—A=+—H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

“E——F % “T-=Ff “T-NF —F-IF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000

FAT FET FET FAT FHExT

TOTAL ASSETS WEE 958,626 884,060 982,067 977,730 888,597
TOTAL LIABILITIES meE (170,441) (136,064) (193,309) (203,824)  (155,969)
788,185 747,996 788,258 773,906 732,628

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ~ Z<2A Bl#EE A FE(L#EZS

OF THE COMPANY 788,004 748,183 788,258 773,906 732,628
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FE RS 181 (187) = = -
788,185 747,996 788,258 773,906 732,628
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